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VISION

Development through

local participation and
job creation led by an

empowered and

dedicated team of

To create quality and

socially responsible

industrial I nfrastructure MISSION

+fu:,'VALUE$

We strive to create end-
to-end solutions based
on individual needs.
Delivering the best in

. inffaStructufe. safety
and security

To operate

10 million Sq. ft.
of Warehousing

Space by 2030
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Our
Directors

Growirug tlte Companl to reach new hetgltts

Managing Director
is a graduate in Finance, Marketing, and
Economics from Wharton Business School,
University of Pennsylvania, USA. He has earlier
worked with Escorts Group (Yamaha, Rajdoot)
has been in the warehousing business since
1996 and looks after the overall management of
the Company

Chief Fi nancial Officer
is an MBA from Manchester
Business School, U.K. and
specializes in Finance, He has been

looking after the business for the
last sixteen years ad is presently

the CF0 of the Company.
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is a part of the promoter family. He
is young, energetic and graduated
from Pederborn University,
Germany. He is keen sports person
and also is working to represent the
country in Equestrian Sports at this
0lympics. He regularly competes in
the international Dressage circuit in
Europe.
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is from St. Xavier's College, Calcutta and holds a Diploma in Capital
Planning and Marketing from Boston College, USA. He has experience in

Jute Manufacturing, Cement manufacturing and Real Estate since 1996.
He is also a Master Franchise of GIobal F&B Brands like Subway, Chilis,
Cinnabon, Auntie Anne's, Royal China I Yogenfruz. He holds Directorship
in Mukund Hospitality Pvt. Ltd., Munund lnternational Pvt. Ltd., Trimex
Foods Pvt. Ltd., Wires I Fabriks SA Ltd., IPCMEA UK (Subway) & Tanushre
Properties Pvt. Ltd.

is from Hindu College, Delhi and holds a Diploma Degree in lnterior
Design fromJenson I Nicholson. She is an eminent Project Designer

operating in Kolkata under the brand Design and Definitions. She is the

senior partner, solely responsible for the successful operation of the firm.

She has successfully completed various projects, corporates and domestic

in excess of 2 million Sq.ft.
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@earsnareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all at the 32nd Annual
General Meeting of your Company and present the Annual Report of
you r Compa ny for the Fina ncia I Yea r ( FY) 202L-22.
The Director's Report and the Audited Accounts for the year ended
March 3L,2022 have already been provided to all the shareholders.
With your permission, I take them as read.
lwould like to place before you, few highlights of Frontier.
It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the
Board of Directors to the Annual General Meeting of your Company. I

hope you are safe and healthy by following the protocols during this
difficult period of COVID-19 pandemic. Your Company has taken
several measures for the safety of the personnel and the community
and to keep the Frontier Warehousing functioning during these
challenging times. I feel proud to present to you the achievements of
your Company for the financial year 2021.-22.

ECONOMIC & BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
The lndian Warehousing sector is making a mark in the present times
with automation and state-of-the-art facilities by moving beyond the
traditional concept of "warehouse". The development of warehousing
in lndia is mainly driven by the following factors:- Make-in-lndia,
Enhanced Trade, Superior Technology & Digital lndia and Government
Policies

Make-in-lndia
Government policies and initiatives have led to rapid growth in the
manufacturing sector, especially in sectors such as textiles,
pharmaceuticals, telecommunications, automobiles and food and
beverages.

Enhanced Trade

Apart from the manufacturing sector; sectors such as organized retail,
information technology, telecommunications and health have
witnessed rapid growth over the years. Consumption is increasing
continuously in these areas and warehousing is developing due to high
demand.

Superior Technology & Digital lndia
Warehouse Management System and other lT tools are helping in
creating efficient warehousing system ranging from lnventory
Management to Handling, Depot and Labor Management, Billing and
lnvoicing etc.

From the Chairman's Desk

Government Policies
The grant of infrastructure status to the logistics segment has led to a

significant increase in investment in the warehousing sector, especially
for Free Trade Warehousing Zones (FTWZs) and Logistics Parks.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company has registered a 4O%increase in total revenue of t 31.93
Crwhich isa40% increase over previousyear revenue of 722.74Cr.
Your Company has registered an earnings before tax depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) of { 10.25 Cr which is 5O% over previous year
< 6.81 Cr. The profit after tax or net income for the financial year under
review stood at t3.38 Crover previous year{2.02 Cr.

COMPTIANCES AND DISCLOSURES

Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its
associated rules there under are fully being adhered to. Your Company
has taken all the prescribed precautions as suggested by the
Government, to mitigate the impact of COVID-L9.

JOURNEYAHEAD

Your Company is looking for further warehousing opportunities in
Dankuni, NH-2 & NH-5 areas and hopes to develop presence in these
areas in the nearfuture. A land parcelon NH-2 has been identified in
this regard, and procurement of land is underway. Around 1.75 million
square feet of warehouses is being planned to be built in this project
overthe next 3 years.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

On behalf of Board of Directors, I express my heartfelt thanks for the
valuable assistance and co-operation extended to the Company by
shareholders for their support to the Company. Further; I record my
deep appreciation for the cooperation extended by the holding
Company, Rasha lnd Pvt Ltd, the Auditors, Bankers and other
professionals associated of the Company.
I would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board and the
Company's employees for their unstinting support. I look forward to
your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of
Frontier Warehousing Limited

sd/-
(Gautam Agarwalla)

Chairman

[DlN:004132041



From the

Chief Financial 0fficer's Desk

@earshareholders:

I am delighted to connect with you and I sincerely hope that you and

yourfamily members are safe and healthy.

Last year was a difficult year for most companies around the world.

This holds true for your Company as well. Howeveq under the

leadership of a capable management team, your Company was quick

to pivot and find opportunities to tide over a tough year and emerge

even more resilient and strong.

Your,Company has completed 12 years. During these years, your

Company has evolved into a trusted brand. From a fledgling entity

serving small customers from some industries, we have now

transformed into a sizeable Company with a large and diversified

customer base covering Large, Medium, and Small Enterprises spread

over several sectors. This has been an exciting journey and I have been

fortunate to serve the Company duringthese years.

Several new customers have taken up space in our newly completed

warehouse blocks and we have been able to increase our Revenues by

over 50% from last year to Rs. 31.93 crores. Similarly, our Profit After

Tax increased by over 4O%lo Rs. 3.38 crores.

Your Company is looking to further maximise profits by reducing our

costs of borrowing and optimization of operations. We expect our

efforts to bear fruit in the coming years. This will enable your

Company to continue our journey to pursue profitable growth and

i ncrease sh a reholde r va I ue.

Your Company's Credit Rating has been re-affirmed as'BBB Stable'

by rating agency CRISIL during a time when most companies in the

industry have been downgraded. We are all but certain to achieve L

or 2 notch higher rating in the next FY.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude towards the

Company employees and appreciate their resilience and support.

They have gone above and beyond their responsibilities to ensure

uninterrupted operations, delivering on our commitments and

responsibilities. While doing so, they have also supported

col leagues a nd thei r fami lies d uring d ifficu lt times.

For and on behalf of

Frontier Warehousing Limited
sd/-

(Amit Agarwalla)
Chief Financial Officer

lDlN:004133451
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To
The Members

The Board of Directors hereby present the Board's Report of lWs.

known as Frontier Warehousing Privute Limited) together with
Company for the financial year ended March 31,2022.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

f,'rontier Warehousing Limited (formerly
the Audited Financial Statements of your

Frontier Warehousing Ltd. (FWL) is a subsidiary company of Rasha Ind Pvt. Ltd. and is engaged in the business

of warehousing in and around the major industrial hubs near Kolkata. Your Company buys land and then builds

warehouses on them. It then lets out the warehouses to various clients in various sizes as per their requirements.

Fixed Rent/License Fees is charged from the clients. Material Handling is not in the Company's scope. Besides

storing of products, the warehouses are also being used for manufacturing purposes by Light-Scale Manufacturing

Units. Clients include J.G. Hosiery Pvt. Ltd. (Amul Undergarments), Dollar Industries Ltd., Pharmeasy Group,

Reliance Group, and several other SME entities.

Currently, Your Company is involved in developing 8.8 lakh sft warehousing space at S.M. Bose Road, Panihati

Municipality, N-24 Parganas. The project is expected to be fully commissioned by lwe,22.

The Warehousing Income and Warehousing Space of your Company over the last 5 years, and the estimated

projection for the next2 years, has been depicted below in Charts A and B respectively.

Your Company is looking for further warehousing opportunities in Dankuni, NH-2 & NH-6 areas and hopes to

develop presence in these areas in the near future. A land parcel on NH-2 has been identified in this regard, and

procurement of land is underway. Around 1.75 million square feet of warehouses is being planned to be built in
this project over the next 3 years.

Further, Your Company got converted to Public Limited Company (Frontier Warehousing Limited) on

02.09.2021by Registrar of Companies, West Bengal.

Chart A : Annual Warehousing lncome (in Rs. Crs)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

The summarised financial results of your Company are given in the table below:

OPERATIONAL AND FINAIICIAL PERFORMANCE :

The Board of Directors presented the financial Statement of the Company & discusses the activities carried on by
the Company during the year under review.

CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE

Particulars
Amount (t) Amount ({) Amount (t) Amount (t)

31.02.2022 31.03.2021 31.02.2022 31.03.2021

Gross Income t 31,93,43,971.00 < 22,74,77,637.00 < 31,93,43,971.00 < 22,74,77,637.00

Profit before Interest and
Depreciation < 25,84,80,277.00 < 19,72,23,602.00 { 26,05,95,505.00 < 19,72,23,602.00

Finance Charges < 15,80,07,397.00 t 12,91,01,916.00 { 15,80,06,636.00 t 12,91,01,916.00

Profit before Depreciation t 10,04,72,990.00 < 6,81,21,796.00 < 10,25,88,869.00 < 6,91,21,796.00

Provision for Depreciation t 4,78,83,470.00 < 3,75,68,683.00 t 4,78,93,470.00 t 3,75,68,693.00

Profit before extraordinary item
and tax { 5,25,89,410.00 t 3,05,53,103.00 t 5,47,05,399.00 t 3,05,53,103.00

Add: extraordinary Items

Profit before tax (PBT) t 5,25,89,410.00 t 3,05,53,103.00 t 5,47,05,399.00 t 3,05,53,103.00

Taxes:

Current Tax < -93,54,700.00 t -52,20,000.00 t -93,54,700.00 < -52,20,000.00

Deferred Tax liability/(asset)
Reversed

t -1,14,83,634.00 < -35,34,326.00 t -1,14,93,634.00 t -35,34,326.00

Tax in respect of earlier year t -15,59,199.00 t -15,59,189.00

Profit After tax (PAT) t 3,17,51,076.00 t 2,02,39,599.00 t 3,38,67,065.00 t 2,02,39,588.00

Balance of Profit brought forward < -35,17,07,597.00 < -37,19,47,175.00 < -35,17,07,597.00 < -37,19,47,175.00

Balance of Profit carried forward
for next year t -31,88,98,517.00 < -35,17,07,597.09 < -31,78,40,523.00 < -35,17,07,597.09

6lFft#*
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There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financialyear ended 3l't March,2022.

The operational figures of the company are given above in financial highlights of the Company.

During the year under review, your Company has registered a total revenue of t31.93 Cr over previous year {
22.74 Cr.

During the year your Company has registered an earnings before tax depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of
<10.25 Cr over previous year {6.81 Cr.

The profit after tax or net income for the financial year under review stood at t3.38 Cr over previous year -2.02

Cr.

SHARE CAPITAL:

Authorised Share Capital:
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company presently stands at {28,00,00,000/- which consist of
<27,75,00,000/- divided into 2,77,50,000 Equity Shares of {10/- each and <25,00,000/- divided into 2,50,000

n.5% Preference Share of {10/- each.

Paid-up Share Capital:
The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company presently stands atT18,32,44,4301- (divided into 1,83,24,443 Equity
Shares of{10/- each).

DIVIDEND/ UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND RESERVES AND NETWORTH:

In view of expansion and diversification programme undertaken by the Company and in order to consolidate the

financial position, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the current financial year. However, it will
be the endeavour of the Management of your Company to have a stable dividend policy in the future.

Your Company does not have any such amount lying under the heads of account as prescribed Investor Education

and Protection Fund Rule 2001, to be credited and paid to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

However,pursuant to order dated 09.12.2019 received under section 230 to 232 and relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and read together with Companies (Compromises, alrangements and Amalgamation) Rules

2016, the Company Bengal waterproof limited (Transferor Company) got merged with Frontier Warehousing

Private Limited (Transferee Company). The Company flrled E-Form INC-27 on 10.08.2021 Vide SRN T34826719

for conversion of Company from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, the same form got

approved on02.09.2021by Registrar of Companies, West Bengal.

The Company Bengal Waterproof Limited merged with Frontier warehousing Limited. The formality relating to

transfer of amount to IEPF account was required to be done by Frontier warehousing Limited.

So, by the virtue of merger the E-form IEPF-I "Statement of amounts credited to Investor Education and

Protection Fund" was filed for the financial year 2007-08 Vide SRN-R14106280 dated:19.11.2019 for Rs.13,5031-

is pending with the authority for approval.

Your Company do not propose to transfer any amount to general reserve for financialyear 2021-22.

Your Company has a net worth of t19.30 Cr.

7lX*ng*
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SECURED LOAIIS:

The financial closure of the Project of your Company was achieved by tying up the debt requirement of t 24.00

Cr with Canara Bank Ltd.

Your Company has availed total loan of t 24.00 Cr on 31.03.2022 and the outstanding secured loan from various

bank stood at 7225.49 Cr over previous year at t205.08 Cr.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS. IF ANY. AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH OCCURED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material change and commitments have occurred which effect the financial position of the Company between

the end of the financial year and the date of this report, except the LRD facility availed from Indusind Bank Ltd,

Upperwood Street Branch, amounting to t91.25 Crores and Non fund based Derivatives of t3.00 Crores and from

HDFC Limited, Brooke House Branch, amounting to {24.00 Crores.

Further your Company has made current investment in un-quoted Equity shares of the Company Teasel Realty
Private Limited (CIN: U45309W82021PTC246381) (Subsidiary) of 75,00,000 shares of t10.00 each

amounting to {7,50,00,000.

Further your Company has made current investment in un-quoted Equity shares of the Company Calendula
Realty Private Limited (CIN: U45203W82022PTC251379) of 20,00,000 shares of t10.00 each amounting to
{2,00,00,000.

GENERAL REVIEW OF USINESS PERFORMANCES AND BUSINESS IMPACT DUE TO COVID.l9
PANDEMIC:

In line with the lockdowns announced by the Central Government of India on account of the spread of Corona

Virus Disease ('COVID-I9') the Board of Directors of the Company had adopted a measure of doing work from
home in order to ensure the continuity of the operation of the Company. The Company does not expect any drastic

effect on its results for the financial year 2021- 22 but the impact of COVID-l9 will to some extent impact the

results.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO:

A) Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption:

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 n respect of
conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities
undertaken by the Company during the year under review.

B) Foreign Earnings and Outgo:

There are no transactions entered by the Company involving foreign currency.

813**S*
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

No R & D activities were carried out during the period under review.

PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENY AND BAIIKRUPTSY CODE.2016:

There are no proceedings filed by the Company which is pending under the Insolvency and bankruptcy Code,

2016 as amended, before National Company Law Tribunal or other Courts during the year under review.

ONE TIME SETTLEMENT WITH THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

There were no instances of one-time sefflement with any Banks or Financial Institutions during the year under

review.

CREDIT RATING:

your Company has been rated by CRISIL Limited ("CR[SIL"). CRISIL Ratings has reaffirmed its 'CRISIL

BBB/Stable' rating on the long-term bank facilities of Frontier Warehousing Limited (FWL). The rating continues

to reflect the experience of the management in the warehousing industry, the company's healthy financial risk

profile and reputed clientele. These strengths are partially offset by exposure to project implementation risks.

With the above rating affirmations, your Company continues to enjoy the highest level of rating from ("CR[SIL")

rating agency.

The BBB ratings indicate high degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations and are also a

vote of confidence reposed in your Company's Management by the rating agencies. It is an acknowledgement of

the strong credit profile of your Company over the years, resilience in earnings despite cyclical

upturns/downturns, robust financial flexibility arising from the significant market value of its holdings and

prudent management.

Rating action
Total Bank Loan Facilities Rated Rs.222.5 Crores

Long Term Rating CRI SIL/BBB/Stable (Reaffirmed)

DIRECTORS/ KMP:

In accordance with the provisions of section 152 and other applicable provisions , if arty, of the Companies Act,

2013 and the Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Amit Agarwalla (DIN:00413345), Director of the

Company, will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-

appointment.

9l$'*S*

Details of Facilities
Facility Amount (Rs. in Crores) Rating

Lease Rental Discounting Loan 64 CRISIL BBB/Stable

Lease Rental Discounting Loan 57.25 CRISIL BBB/StAbIE

Lease Rental Discounting Loan 32 CRISIL BBB/Stable

Proposed Fund-Based Bank Limits 9.2s CRISIL BBB/Stable

Term Loan 60 CRISIL BBB/Stable

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U70 I 09WB 1 990PLC048431
Board Report for Financial Year ended 3l"t March2022



S. No. Name Designation
I Mr. Gautam Agarwalla Chairman & Managing Director
2 Mr. Amit Agarwalla Director & CFO
J Mrs. Priti Agarwalla Alternate Director to Mr. Anush Agarwalla
4 Mr. Anush Agarwalla Director
5 Mr. Rishi Bajoria Independent Director
6 Mrs. Charu Rajgarhia Independent Director

The Board of Directors of the Company is with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors Following composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31,
2022. Further there had been no changes in the composition of Board of directors during the period under review:

Pursuant to provisions Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial personnel (KMp) of the
Company as on March 31,2022 are;

Pursuant to section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read, with the Companies (Appointment and eualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 yotx company have two Independent Directors.

Followings are the Independent Directors on the Board of company:

All the above Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence' prescribed under section 149(6) and have
submitted their declarations to that effect.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board met 5 (Five) times during the financial year. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not
exceed 120 days, as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

All the meetings were held through physical mode at the registered office of the Company.

Director's attendance of Board meeting for the financial year 2021-22 is tabled below:

10 lP{ag*

S. No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Gautam Agarwalla Managing Director
2 Mr. Amit Agarwalla Chief Financial Offlrcer
n
J Mrs. Milan Bhatia Company Secretary

S. No. Name Designation
I Mr. Rishi Bajoria Independent Director
2 Mrs. Charu Rajgarhia Independent Director

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing private Limited)

CIN: U70l 09wB I 990pLC04843 1

Board Report for Financial year ended 3l't March 2022

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDANT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149(0 OF THE COMPAI\IES
ACT.2013:



DATES GAUTAM
AGARWALLA

AMIT
AGARWALLA

PRITI
AGARWALLA

RISHI
BAJORIA

CHARU
RAJGARIIIA

15.05.2021 Present Present Present Present Present

24.08.2021 Present Present Present Present Present

27.08.202t Present Present Present Present Present

t7.12.2021 Present Present Present Present Present

30.03.2022 Present Present Present Present Present

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Audit Committee has been constituted as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 on

24.10.2020. The Audit Committee of the Company presently comprises of three Directors being Mr. Gautam
Agarwalla (00413204), Mr. Rishi Bajoria (00501157) and Mrs. Charu Rajgarhia (05329700).

The Audit Committee met (4) Four times during the year under review as under:

The Company has laid down a policy on Audit Committee, which has been uploaded on the Company website.

The web-link as required under the Act is as under:

https://www.frontierwarehousing.com/wp-content/uploadsl202ll07lAUDIT-COMITTEE-POLICY.pdf

The salient features, Role, Function and Powers are laid down as under:

Role/ Functions of the Committee:

o Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board.
o Recommending the appointment and removal of auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval for

payment for any other services.

o Review of policies relating to risk management - operational and financial.
o Reviewing with the management, auditors and the adequacy of the internal control system.

Powers of the Committee:

o To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
o To secure attendance of and seek any information from any employee including representative of the

prime shareholders (subject to their internal approvals).

. Compliance with accounting standards.

o To obtain outside legal or other professional advice, if necessary.

o To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted as per the provisions of Section 178(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013 on 24.10.2020 to review and to recommend the remuneration payable to the Executive
Directors and Senior Management of the Company based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company presently comprises of three Directors being Mr.
Gautam Agarwalla (00413204), Mr. Rishi Bajoria (00501157) and Mrs. Charu Rajgarhia (05329700).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met (4) Four times during the year under review as under:

The Company has laid down a policy on Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which has been uploaded on

the Company website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under:

https://www.frontierwarehousing.com/wp-content/uploadsl202ll0TlAPPOINTMENT-AND-REMUNERATION-
POLICY-OF-DIRECTORS.pdf

The term of reference and policy are laid down asunder:

The following is the terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

r Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a

Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the level and composition of remuneration of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

o Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
o Devising a policy on Board diversity; and

o Identifyirg persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment

and removal

Nomination and Remuneration Polic.,r:

The Committee is in process of formulating Nomination and Remuneration Policy which determines criteria inter-
alia qualification, positive attributes and independence of Directors for their appointment on the Board of the

Company and payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. The
Committee shall consider the following attributes I criteria, whilst recorlmending to the Board the candidature for
appointment as Director.

o Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;
o Personal, Professional or business standing;
r Diversity of the Board
o In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the

performance evaluation of the Director and his engagement level.
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STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee on24.10.2020 n
order to align it with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee has been

constituted to strengthen the investor relations and to inter-alia, look into issues relating to shareholders

grievances pertaining to transfer of shares, non- receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of Annual Report,

issues concerning de-materialization etc.

This committee presently consists of three Directors namely Mr. Gautam Agarwalla (00413204), Mr. Rishi

Bajoria (00501157) and Mrs. Charu Rajgarhia (05329700).

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met (4) Four,r-". during the year under review as under:

The Company has laid down a policy on Stakeholders Relationship Committee, which has been uploaded on the

Company website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under:

https://www.frontierwarehousing.com/wp-content/uploadsl202ll0T ISTAKEHOLDER-RELATIONSHIP-
COMITTEE-POLICY.pdf

The term of reference and policy are laid down asunder:

Stakeholders Relationship Committee Policlz:

o To approve/refuse/reject registration of transfer/transmission of Shares in a timely manner;

o To issue the Share Certificates under the seal of the Company, which shall be affixed in the presence of,
and signed by:

(i) AnV two Directors (including Managing or Whole-time Director, if any), and

(ii) Company Secretary / Authorised Signatory;

o To authorize affixation of the Common Seal of the Company on Share Certificates of the Company;

o To authorize to sign and endorse the Share Transfers on behalf of the Company;

o To authorized Managers/Officers/Signatories for signing Share Certificates;

PERT'ORMANCE EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the Directors individually as well as evaluation of the
working of the Board and of the Committees of the Board, by way of individual and collective feedback from

Directors.
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The following were the Evaluation Criteria:

(a) Independent Directors:
o Knowledge and Skills
o Professional Conduct
o Duties, Role and Functions

o Fulfilment of the Independence criteria and independence from the management.

(b) For Non-Executive Directors:
o Knowledge and Skills
o Professional Conduct
o Duties, Role and Functions

(c) For Executive Directors:
o Performance as Team LeaderAylember
o Evaluating Business Opportumty and analysis of Risk Rewards Scenarios
o Set Key Goals and Achievement
o Sharing of Information with the Board

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with evaluation process.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Every Company having Networth of t500 Crores or more or turnover t1000 Crores or more or Net profit t5
Crores or more during the immediately preceding financial year is required to spend in every Financial Year, at
least 2Yo of average net profits of the Company made during the immediately preceding financial year in
pursuance of its CSR Policy.

Since the Company do not meet the above threshold limits, the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 on Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable for Financial year 2021-22.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has a Business Risk Management framework designed to identiSr and mitigate risk that has the
potential to materially impact its business objectives and maintains a balance between managing risk and
exploiting the opportunities. The approach of Risk Management is defined across the Company at various levels,
including documentation and reporting, interspersed with diverse risk models to help identi$r risk trends, exposure
and potential impact analysis at the corporate level.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

Pursuant to provisions of section 177(9) & 10 of the Companies Act, 2013 a vigil mechanism or Whistle Blower
Policy for Directors, employees and other stakeholders to report genuine concerns has been established. The same
is also uploaded on the website of the Company and the web-link

https://www.frontierwarehousing.com/wp-content/uploadsl202ll0T|WHISTEL-BLOWER-pOLICy.pdf
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Companies internal control procedure which includes Internal financial control, we ensure compliance with

various policies, practices and statutes and keeping in view the organization's pace of growth and increasing

complexities of operations. The Internal Auditor team carries out extensive audit throughout the year across all

location and across all functional areas and submits it repost to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES/ REMUNERATION OF KMP AND DIRECTORS:

A statement containing particular of employees as require 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013, read with rules

5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 20l4,in respect of
remuneration of each Director to the remuneration of the Employees of the Company is not applicable.

DISCLOSURB UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORI( PLACE
(PREVENTION. PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013 :

Your Company respects and values diversity reflected in various background, experiences and ideas and is

committed to providing employees with a work place that free from discrimination and harassment. The Company

has adopted a policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at work place in line with the

provision of the sexual harassment of women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Every employee is required to complete mandatory online training on Prevention of sexual harassment of women

at work place.

As per the Company has Internal Compliant Committee (ICC) established in accordance with the aforesaid act for

addressing sexual harassment incident.

The Internal Compliant Committee (ICC) comprises of following members:

The policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment is available on the website of the Company at the weblink

https:i/www.frontierwarehousing.com/wp-content/uploadsl202ll07POLICY-ON-PREVENTION-OF-SEXUAL-
HARAS SMENT-AT-WORKPLACE.pdf

No Compliant of Sexual Harassment was received by the Company during year under review.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Annual Return In accordance with the provisions of Section 13a(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual

Return referred in sub-section (3) of Section 92 is placed on the website of the Company at web link

https://www.frontierura rehousing.com/investor- relations/
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MSME COMPLIANCE:

There was no Trade Payable pending for more than45 days during the yearunder review .

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS:

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act20l3, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms that-

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 3I,2022, the Company has followed
the applicable accounting standards and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March3l,2022 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors has made the accounts on 'going concern basic'.
e) the Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to

laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company;

0 the Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS:

STATUTORY AUDITOR

In compliance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 Audit and Auditors rules, 2014, M/s Deepak
Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, having firm Registration No. 0322153E were appointed as

Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of AGM to be held in the year 2025-26.

The Auditor's report for financialyear 2021-22 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The
Auditors report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors re-appointed Mr. Rahul Srivastava, Practising Company Secretary to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the Financial Year 2022-23.The Secretarial Audit Report of Mr. Rahul Srivastava, Practising Company
Secretary for the financial year ended 2021-22 is annexed as Annexure L

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable and mandetory provisions
of the Secretarial Standards.

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Rahul Srivastava, Practising Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23
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INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Internal Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Rahul Agarwal, Practising Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of
the Company for the Financial Year 2022 - 23.

PANTICULARS OF LOAIIS. GUARANTEES AND INYESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of The Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Notes

to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

DEPOSIT:

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public falling under the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with 'Chapter V- Acceptance of Deposits by Companies', during the year under

review.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Your Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking related party transactions only in the ordinary

and normal course of business and at arm's length as part of its philosophy of adhering to highest ethical

standards, transparency and accountability. In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has

approved a policy on related party transactions. A policy on related party transactions has been placed on the

Company's website at weblink

https://www.frontierwarehousing.com/wp-content/uploadsl202llI7IPOLICY-ON-RELATED-PARTY-
TRANSACTIONS.pdf

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and before the Board for approval. Prior

omnibus approval of the Audit Committee and the Board is obtained for the transactions which are foreseeable

and of a repetitive nature. The particulars of contracts or alrangements with related parties referred to in Section

188(1) and applicable rules of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is provided as Annexure II to this

Board's Report.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY. JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES:

During year under review your Company have one Subsidiary as o'Teasel Realty Private Limited (CIN:
U45309W82021PTC246381\". Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read

with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and applicable rules of the Companies Act, 2013 inForm AOC-
1 is provided as Annexure III to this Board's Report.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going

concern status and the Company's operations in future,

Your Company during the year under review have not accepted any fixed deposits, including from the public, and,

as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.
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There was no change in the nature of Business of your Company during the year 2021 - 22

No application has been received by your Company under Right to Information Act, 2005.

There were no instance of fraud reported by the Auditors vide their Report for the FY 2O2l - 22

All Directors had disclosed there nature of interest/ concern in the Company or Companies or Body Corporate,
firms or other association of Individual as required under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from
the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, and members during the year under review. The
Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the

Gautam Agarwalla
Director
DIN: 00413204

Prace: Korkata fil::fi:"rwarra
Date: 25.05.2022 DIN:0041334S
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Annexure I

Form No. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT RBPORT

FOR THE FINAIICIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(l) of-the Companies Act, 20]3 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014J

To
The Members
FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(Formerly lmown as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

crN-u70 1 09w81 990PLC04843 I
East India House
20B Abdul Hamid Street
3rd Floor, Suite 3F
Kolkata 700069

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate practices by FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED (Formerly lvtown as

Frontier Warehousing Private Limited) (hereinafter called'othe company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted

in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances

and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents

and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in our opinion,

the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31't March, 2022 complied

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:I

have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 3l't March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)and the rules made there under;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

iii) The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv) I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the

Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

(a) The Kolkata Municipal Corporation Act, 1980

(b) The West Bengal Shop and Establishment Act, 1963

(c) The West Bengal Municipal Act,l993

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards as mandated and issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and

(ii) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.(Not applicable since the Company is not listed there securities to any

Stock Exchange)
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above under stated otherwise.

I further report that,

During the year under review, it has been observed that E-Form INC-27 filed with the Registrar of
Companies, West Bengal which got approved on 02.09.2021. Hence the Company got converted from
Private Limited to Public Limited.

During the year under review it has been observed that by the virtue of merger the E-form IEPF-I
"Statement of amounts credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund" was filed for the financial year

2007-08 Vide SRN-R14106280 dated:19.11.2019 for Rs.13,503/- by transferee Company, Frontier
Warehousing Limited and the same is pending with authority for approval.

Further there is no change in the composition of Board of Directors of the Company.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

A11 decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees. of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed "ANNEXURE - A" and forms an

Integral Part of this Report.

For Rahul Srivastava
Company Secretaries

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

Proprietor
FCS No.: 11828

C P No.: 23592
UDIN: A033930D000382487

20 lPeS*



?

I

I
l-

I!

*ANNEXURE _ A'

(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH. 2022)

To
The Members
F'RONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(Formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

crN-u70 1 09wB I 990PLC04843 1

East India House

20B Abdul Hamid Street

3rd Floor, Suite 3F

Kolkata 700069

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.Ihave followed the Audit practices and processes as where appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that

correct facts are reflected in Secretarial Records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the

Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and

regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is

the responsibilities of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test

basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Rahul Srivastava

Company Secretaries

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

Proprietor
tr'CS No.: 11828

C P No.: 23592

UDIN: A033930D000382487
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Annexure ll

FORM NO. AOC.2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and RuIe 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis: There were no contracts
or affangements of transactions entered into during the financialyear ended March 31,2022, which were not
on arm's length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

GautamAgarwalla
DIN: 00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00s01157
Non-Executive Director

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

Amit Agarwalla
DIN:00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary

SL. No. Particulars Details Details Details
a) Name (s) of the related

party & nature of
relationship

Rasha Ind Pvt Ltd
(Holding Company)

Rasha Ind Pvt Ltd
(Holding Company)

Rasha Ind Pvt Ltd
(Holding Company)

b) Nature of
c ontracts/arrangements/tr
ansaction

Contract for
rendering services
shall be on a
continuous basis.

Contract for rendering
services shall be on a
continuous basis.

Contract for
rendering services
shall be on a
continuous basis.

c) Duration of the contracts/
arrangements/
transaction

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

d) Salient terms of the
contracts or
affangements or
transaction including the
value, if any

As per Agreement As per Agreement As per Agreement

e) Date of approval by the
Board

15.05.2021 15.05.2021 15.05.2021

0 Amount paid as

advances, ifany
Fts.23,54,45,000/- Rs.21,42,18,155/- Rs.3,68,06,0361-
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Annexure lll

FORM NO. AOC.I
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companiesijoint

ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read. with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules,2014)

Part "A": Subsidiary
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs)

Name of the subsidiary
Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the holding
company's
reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as
on the last date of the relevant financial
year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share capital
Reserves & surplus

Total assets

Total Liabilities
Investments

Turnover
Profit before taxation
Provision for taxation
Profit after taxation
Proposed Dividend

Y" of shareholding

s ame as per n,,u,ilT:ffi'I.:;il1ilT[:

N.A.

< 5,00,00,000.00

t 4,79,88,313.00

t 1,04,301.00

< 4,78,84,011.00

< -21,15,999.00

< -21,15,999.00

50o/"

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

GautamAgarwalla
DIN: 00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

AmitAgarwalla
DIN: 00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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PartrrRrf : Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures (N.A.)

Name of Associates/ Joint Namel Name2 Name3Ventures

l.Latest audited Balance
Sheet Date

2.Sharesof Associate/ Joint
Ventures held by the
company on they earend

No.

Amount of Investment in
Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of HoldingTo

Name of Associates/ Joint Namel
Ventures

3.Description of how there
is significant influence

4.Reason why the
associate/joint venture is
not consolidated

S.Networth attributable to
Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

Name2 Name3

6.ProfrttLoss for the year

i. Considered in
Consolidation
i. Not Considered in
Consolidation

1 Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

GautamAgarwalla AmitAgarwalla
DIN: 00413204 , DIN: 00413345
Managing Director Director- CFO

Rishi Bajoria Milan Bhatia
DIN- 00501157 Mem. No-34850
Non-Executive Director Company Secretary

Place:'Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022
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DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

156A, Lenin Sarani,
F-84, Kumalalaya Centre, Kolkata - 700 013

Ph. No. 8335957541
Bharuka2004@Yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AI'DITORS' REPORT
To
The Members of FRONTIER WAREEOUSING LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Fin&ncial Statem€nts

Opinion
W'e have ur<1ite4 the accompaaying fmancial statements of FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIIIIITED ('the Company),

which comprise tle Batao"e Sneet us at Marah 3 1 , 2022, ard lhe Statement of Profit and Irss and statement of cash flows for

the year then ended, and notes to the fmaDcial statements, including a summary of significant accomting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements

give the information required by the Companies Act, Zgtl 1;e"f1 , tL" -"-er so required ani ,ve a hue and fair view in

ionformity with Oe accounting principles generally accepted in Indi4 of the State of Affais ofthe Compaoy as at March 3l'
2022, its Profit and Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducid our audit in accordance with the staudards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act
2013. Our rcsponsibilities under those Standanls are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the

filancial statements section of our rqrort. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by

the Institute of Charteted Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

finarcial statements under tle provisions of the 1ct arrd the rules thereundet, and we have fulfilled our other ettrical

responsibilities in accordance with these rcquirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ow opinion.

Key Audit Mstters
Key audit matters.are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial

staLments ofthe current period. These matters wire addressed in the context ofout audit ofthe fmaDcial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters'

Reporting ofkey audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is ar unlisted company.

E r.phasis of Msfter't. tf,e Company has been converted &om "Privatr Limited Company" to 'Limit€d Company' during the year on 2d
Septemba 2021, and accordingly provisions of the Limit€d company has been applied and reported on to drc Company

during the year under rwiew.

2. We draw att€ltion to Note- 42 to the accompanying Sta.ndalone audited Financial Statements, $,ith regard to the

management,s evaluation ofuncertahty due to the outbreak of COVID-Ig and its impact on the future performance atrd

operations ofthe Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

InforEation other thrn the Fhsnclsl Ststements and Audltorr' report thcreon

The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises

the information inclucled in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's R€por! Business Responsibility Report but does

not inctude the financial statemslts ald our auditor's report thereon.

Out opinion on the financial statements does not cover th€ other information and we do not express any form of assuranoe on

conclusion thereon.

In comection with our audit of the ftraucial statements, our responsibility is to read the other idomation and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone fmanciel statements or our kuowledge

obtained during the course ofour audit oI otherwis€ appea$ to bo materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of this other informatiou; we are

requfued to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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MalrgeDetrt's Responsibility for the Firsncial Statements

The Company's boa.d of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 2013 with respect to the
preparation of these furanciat statements that give a tue and fair view of the fmancial position, fmanciat performance aad cash
flows of the Company in accordance 

-wittr 
the accounting principles generalty accepted in in<lia, inctuOing Oe accounting

standards specified under section 133 offto Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Compaay and for preventing and detecting frauds and otler irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimatis that are reasonable ,iO p-a*t; and design,
implementation and maiDtenance of adequato intemat financial controls, that were operating eifectively for ensuring the
accuracy ard corDpleteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the frnancial statement that
give a tnre and fair view and are free ftom Eaterial misstatement, whethei due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemeDts, maDagement is responsible for assessiug the Company's abitity to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters retated to going concem and using the going concem basis of accountiug untess
managemeut eitler intends to liquidate the Compatry or to cease operations, or has no real tic attemative but to do so.

The Board of Daectors are also responsible for overceeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fimnci&l Strtements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to ftaud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inoludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee tlat an audit conducted in accordance with S,As will always dotect a materiat
misstatemeDt v/heD it oxists. Misstatmelts can arise ftom fraud or error and are considered material if, irulividualy or in the
aggegate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the iasis of ftrese financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgrnent and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also

' Identi& and assess the risl6 of materiat misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to ftaud or enor, design aud
perform audif procedures rcsponsive to those risks, and obtain audit eyideuce ttrat is sufficient and appropriate to povide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting- a material misstatement resulting from Aaud is higher tt anli1611s ,esuling ftom error,
as fraud may involve cotlusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the oieride of intcmat control.

'obtain an understandiug of intemal coDhot relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2ol3, we are also responsibte for expressinj'our opinion on
whettrer the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operzting effectiveness of-such controls

'Evaluato the appropriatenoss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management. Conclude on the appropriateness of managemetrt's use of the goingioncem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, .whethq a material uncertainty exists related-to Jvents or conditions that ma! casi
significaot doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the retadd disclosures in the fnancial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modifr our opinion, Our couclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the jate of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to caase to continue as a going concem.

'Evaluate ttre overall presentation, structure ard contelt of the financiat statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements rgpresent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieyes-fair prgsentation-

We coomuicate v.ith those charged with gov. emame regarding, among other matters, the plamed scope and timing of the audit
and sigoificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemar control-that we i<lenti!, iuring our audit.

We also provide ttrrcse charged with govemance with a statement ilat we have complied with relevant ethical
regarding independeuce, and to communiJate_with them alt relationships and other matte$ thut -uy."*o*bty be ihought to
bear on our independence, and where applicabte, related safeguards.

From the matters co[uluniceted with rhose charged with govemance, we determine ttrose mattgrs that were ofmost significanco
in the audit ofthe linancial statements ofthe curellt period and are therefore the key audit matlers. 'lfe describe these mutters in
our auditor's report ut ess law or regulation plecludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extre-ely rare
circurnstaoces, we determine that a matler should not be communicated in out report because the adverse consequenc", ofdoir,g
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such iommunication.



Report on other Legal and Regulatory R€quirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 Cthe Ordor'), issued by the Cetrtral GovernDent oflndia in terms
of sub-section (l l) of section 143 of the Companies Acl" 2013, we give in the Annexure "B", a statement on the matt€rs
speciied in paragaphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report thrt:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes ofour audil:

(b) Iu our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kopt by the Company so far as it al4rears ftom our
examination of those books;

(c) The Balance SheeL ttre Statement ofProfrt and Loss, and the Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the Books ofAccount;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accountiDg standaxds specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the writteu representations received ftom ttre direato$ as on March3l, 2021 taken on record by the Boaxd of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 I , 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section I 64
(2) ofthe Act;

(0 With respoct to the adequacy of the intenal financial controls over fiuancial reporting of the Company and the
operating effective[ess of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Anncxure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197 (16) of thc Act.

In Our opinion and to the best of our information and according to ttre explanations given to us, provisions of section 197 are not
applicable on the company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 ofthe Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatioos given to us;

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations whiah woutd impact its financial position, refer to note
no-36.

b. The Company has made provision (nil for the period), as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

c. There are no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company for
the year under review.

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 03221538

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580

UDIN: 22055580AJOLQD3 123

Place: Kolkata
Date:25.05.2022
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Alnexure 'A' referred to tie Independent Auditor's Report of ev€n date on the Financial Strtemcnts of FRONTIER
WAREIIOUSING LIMITED.

Report on the internd linancisl controls under clause (i) of ttre sub.section 3 of section 143 Companies Ac( 2013 ("tle
&ct")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over fmancial reporting of FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED (the

"Company") as at 3 1 't March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of ttre finaDcial statements of the company for the year ended

on that data.

Mamgement's responsibility for internal financial controls

The company's managcment is responsible for establishing and maintaiaiug intemal fmanciat controls based on ttre intemal
control ovel fiaancial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential coDponents of intemal control
stated in the guidance notes on audit of intomal financial control over financial reportiug issued by the Institutc of chartered

Accountants of Iadia (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherenco to coopany's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fiauds and erroN, the accuracy

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable fmancial information as required under the
Companies Act, 20 I 3 .

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opiniol on the company's intemat fiDancial controls ov€r filancial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note and the standards on auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under sectiou 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemat financial
control, both applicabte to an audit of intemal financial coltrol and both issued by ICAI. Those standards and the Guidance note
require ttrat we oompty with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial coltrols over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all rnaterial rcspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidences about the adequacy ofthe internal frnancial controls system

over financial rcporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial oontols over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over fmancial reporting, assossing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and t€sting and eyaluating tho design and opemting effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk
The procedwes selected depend on the auditor's judgmenq including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statemeDts, whettrer due to fiaud or error.

We believe that the audit el.idence wo hava obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oru audit opinion ou the

company's intemal finanaial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internsl Financial Cotrtrols over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal firancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provid€ roasonable asswance iegading
to reliability of fiuancial reporting and the preparation of finaacial statoments for extem&l puqroses in accordance with generalty
accepted accounting principles. A company's financial conhol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that

(l) pertain to ttre maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the bansactions aud

dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company;

(2) provide reasonable asswance that tansactions are record€d as necessary to pemit preparatiou of fmancial statements iD

accordance with generally acceptod accolmting principles, aud that recoipts and expouditures of company are being
made only in accordance wittr authorizations ofmanagemont aod directors ofthe company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regaxding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of tle company's assets ttrat could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limit&tions ofitrternsl filsncial controls over furancirl reporting

Because ofthe inherent limitations ofintemal fi.nancial conhols over financial reporting, including the possibility ofcollusion or
improper managemetrt override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fiaud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections ofany evaluation of ttre intemal financial conhol over financial rcpofting to future periods arc subject to the risk that
the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting

and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31't March, 2022, based on the

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal

control stated in the guidance note.

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 03221538

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No.055580

Place: Kolkata
Date:25.05.2022
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DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

CONTINAATION SHEET

ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the
Members of Frontier Warehousing Limited as at 31't March 2022)

1. a)(i) The company is maintaining proper records showing fulIparticulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

o

(ii) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets; However the company does not
have any intangible assets .

b) The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management on reasonable period and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the registered sale /deed
transfer deed/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds comprising all the immovable properties of land
and acquired buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date except following:

(d) The company has not rcvalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assats) or htangible assets or both
during the year an( Hence this clause not applicable to the Company.

(e ) Till date , there is.no proceedings initiated or ponditrg against the company for hotding any benami property uruler the
Benami Traasactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of lgss) iod -1", -ud" thereuncler, ii so, whether-the company has
appropriately disclosed the details in its fmancial statements. Hence this clause not applicable to the Company.

2.(a)The company does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragrdph 3(ii) ofthe order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company has not besn sanctioned working capital limits during the year. However the company has been sanctioned
Term Loans during the year and as per the management, all compliances relatiug to limits are being compted with.
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Gross Carrying
VaIue

HeId in name of Whether
Promoter,
Director or

their Relative

Period held
indicate range,

where
Appropriate

Reason for not
being held in

name of company

68,I5,70,812/-
(revalued)

Bengal
Waterproof
Ltd.(Bengal

Waterproof Ltd.
has been merged

with the
Company on the
basis of order

passed by
Hon'ble NCLT

Kolkata on
09/1 2/2019,

According to the
management, the

Company has
taken steps to

Mutate the Land is
its name-

However the same
is pending with

appropriate
authorities.

Land at Subhash
Pally

Durgapur Road,
MouzaMrigola, JL-
102, Dist Hooghly,

PrN- 71231 I

76,150,000/- Super Forgings &
Steels Ltd

The CompanyDoes
not intend to

register the land in
company's name,

the Company
directly selling the
land as confirming

The CompanyDoes
not intend to

register the land in
company's name,

the Company
directly selling

theland as

Land at Dankuni
Dankuni Road

Mouza-Gobra, Dist-
Hooghly

Pin-712310

2,40,00,000/- According to the
Management, the
Company is taking

steps to register the
land in the

According to the
Management, the
Company is taking

steps to register the
land in the

Companv's Name
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3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and limited liability partnership or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b)
and (iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company.

a) The company has invested Rs. 2,50,00,000/- ( P.Y. Nil) in a body corporate ( subsidiary ) covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Also the Company granted capital advance Rs. 23,54,45,0001- (P.Y.Rs. 3,56,53,000/-) to a Holding Company Rasha
Ind. Pvt Ltd which covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the act. However the capital advance is not
the nature of Loan & Advance hence this clause is not applicable.

c) Clause (b) , (c) , ( d) ,('e) and d are not applicable to the company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73, 74,75 and76 of the act and

the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

6. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the
services rendered by the Company

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been generally
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of employee's state insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed statutory amount payable in respect of
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of custom, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31't March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable as follows.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not deposited the following disputed amount
payable in respect of service tax and Income Tax of merged entity:

Frontier Warehousins Limited

Bensal Waterproof Ltd.( Mersed Entitv)
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Period to
which amount

relates

Amount Involved Forum under
which Appeal is

FiIed
Service Tax 81,35,051/-The Finance

Act,1994
76,21,6721-April,2010 to

March,2013
Commissioner (A)II

Central Excise,
Kolkata

Period to which
amount relates

Forum under which Appeal is FiledNature of Dues Amount
Involved

CIT Appeal and Jurisdiction Officer74,18,1221-

57,61,0231- Applied under VSVS Scheme,2020,
for settlement & paid Rs. 12807371-.

Form IV awaited.

A.Y.2005-06

8,12,1571- CIT Appeal and Jurisdiction OfficerThe Income Tax Act
1961

A.Y. 2010-11 3,35,9701-

,

t-



(c ) According to the information and explanation given to us in respect of statutory and other dues of Bengal
Waterproof Ltd.

The Assistant Labor Commissioner & Competent Authority under the payment of Gratuity Actl972 has passed an Ex-parte
order against the Company for payment of Rs. 23,54,2091- as Gratuity to 12 ex- employees of the Company. The Company
couldn't defend the proceedings primarily because of lack of frrnds to engage legal counsels. Also all service files were under the
custody of I retired employee at the relevant time when the proceedings were initiated.

8.Whether any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), if so, whether the previously unrecorded income has been
properly recorded in the books of account during the year. This clause is not applicable to the company.

9. a) The Company has taken term loans from bank and financial institutions during the year and the company has been

generally regular in the payment of the principal and interest as stipulated by these bank. The company has not any defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The company has not defaulted on repayment of any loan taken by the bank or institution during the year

c) The loans were applied for the purposes for which it was taken.

d) No loans were raised on short term basis.

e) The company has not taken any such loan to fund the obligations of its associated parties.

0 The company has not raised loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries , associates or joint ventures .

10.(a) The Company has not raised money by the way of initial public offer of further public offer (including debt instrument).

b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares, convertible debentures during the year
under review.

11. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b) No ADT - 4 has been filed by the auditors during the year under review.

c) No whistle - blower complaints has been received by the company during the year under review.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , the Company is not a nidhi Company,
Accordingly,paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards

vide note no-30 to the financial statements.

A.(a) The company has an internal audit system cofllmensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) Based on the observation given on the report no major observations requiring comment has been given by the Internal
Auditor.

l5.According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16.In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

17. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year,

18. There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditor during the year under review.

19.On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date;
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2O(a) Sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act is not applicable to the company during the year under review.

(b) This clause is not applicable to the company during the year under review.

21.No adverse remarks have been found in the CARO report of the Companies included in the consolidated financial statements

for the year under review.

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 03221538

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580

Place: Kolkata
Dated:25.05.2022
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Particulars

EQUITYAND LIABITITIES
Shareholders'funds

[a) Share Capital

[b) Reserves and Surplus

[c ) Money received against share warrants

Non-current Liabilities
(aJ Long-term Borrowings
(bJ Deferred Tax Liabilities
(c) Other Long-term Liabilities
(d) Long-term Provisions

Current Liabilities
[a) Short-Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables

(i) Total Outstanding dues MSME

[ii) Total Outstanding dues other than
MSME

[c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-term Provisions

TOTAL
ASSETS
Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property Plant & Equipment
[ii) Intangible Assets

[iiiJ Capital Work-in-Progress
(b) Non-current Investments
(cJ Long-term Loans andAdvances
[d) Other Non-current Assets
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

CurrentAssets
(a) Current Investments
(b) Inventories
[c) Trade Receivables

[d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(e) Short-term Loans and Advances
[f] Other Current Assets

TOTAL
Significant Accounting policies and notes

Amount in Rupees
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,Note No.

2
3

4

5

6

7
7

B

9

t2

13
l4
15
t6

1

2022

18,32,44,43O
1,OO,16,65,255

2021

18,32,44,43O
96,77,98,191

l,1B,49,Og,685

2,25,49,60,73L
1,69,15,000

46,O4,LL,277

1,L5,1o,42,62L

2,OS,OB,gg,268
53,31,366

29,85,4O,388

2,73,21,87,OO9

16,24,37,678

3,68,06,036
53,38,189

2,45,69,730
2,64,52,381

25,56,O4,O13

2,35,47,71,023

26,72,49,993

2,BO,3B,g7g

3,37,82,396
1,7O,97,691

34,61,68,949

B
1

4,17,27,OO,707

3,16,93,04,546

30,64,69,379

27,14,23,O;O

3,95,19,82,592

2,O,-,S,.,16,2gS

92,54,29,6;3

56,57,94,250

10

10

t1

3,74,71,96,925

2,50,00,000

1,o9,69,744
20,O,.,O2,B44
11,15,27,460

7,79,O4,734
42,55,O3,792

4,17,27,OO,7O7

3,50,63,30,198

ag,zg,o)s
3,29,59,919

23,08,25,702
7,3O,44,O99

34,56,52,394
3,g5,tg,g2,sgz

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our Report of even date

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0322153E

DEEPAKAGARV/AL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:220ss58OAJOLQD3 I 23

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

GautamAgarwall
DIN:00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

Amit Agarwalla
DIN: 00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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Amount in Rupees
Figures as at the end of tr'igures as at the end of the

current reporting period previous reporting period

A
1

,
3

4

Particulars

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue from Operations (gross)

Other Income

Total Income (1+2)

Expenses

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-
in-progress and stock-in-trade

(a) Employee Benefits Expense

(b) Finance Costs

(c) Depreciation and Amortisation expense

(d) Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and
extraordinary items and tax (3 - 4)

In terms of our Report of even date

FOT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0322 I 53E

DEEPAKAGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:2205 s5 8OAJOLQD3 1 23

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

Note No.

t7
18

19

20

2t
22

GautamAgarwalla
DIN:00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

26129,13,305

5,64,30,666

31,93,43,971

97146,69g

15,80,06,636

4,78,83,470

4190r01r769

26,46,38,573

5147105,399

5,47,05,399

5,47,05,399

(93,54,700)

(1,14,83,634)-

3,38,671065

1.85

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

19,72,05,245

3,02,72,392

22,74177,637

83,72,937

12,91,01,816

3,75,68,683

2,18,81,098

19,69,24,534

3r05r53,103

3,05,53,103

3,05,53,103

(52,20,000)

(35,34,326)

(15,59,189)

2r02r39,598

1.10

6 Exceptional items

7 Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and
tax (5 + 6)

8 Extraordinary items

9 Profit / (Loss) before tax (7 + 8)

10 Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax

(2) Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset)
Reversed

(3) Tax in Respect of earlier year

11 Profit / (Loss) for the year (9-10)

12 Earnings per equity share Basic and Diluted tr'ace Value
Rs. 10/_ each.

Significant Accounting policies and notes I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Amit Agarwalla
DIN:00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax

Adjustments -for:
Depreciation and Amortisation expense

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and equipment

Loss/ (Profit) on MF

Interest Income

Finance Cost

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes

Adjustments.for

Trade receivables

Short Term Loans and Advances

Long Term loans and advances

Other Current assets

Other Long Term Liabilities

Differed Tax Assets/liabilities

Short term Borrowings

Other Current Liabilities

Trade payables

Short Term Provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income tax refund/(payment)

Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items

tl-ess : Extraordinary items

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investine activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and equipment

Sale of Investments

Payment for acquiring eq. Shares

Addition in Capital Work in?rogress

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B)

C. Cash flow from linancine activities

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital

Interest Paid

Interest Received

Repayment of Long-term Borrowing

Net Cash flow From Financing Activities (C)

Add : Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year

Closing Cash and Cash equivalent

tr'or the year ended
3lMarch,2022

For the year ended
31 March,2021

P.P.Rs.

5,47,05,399

4,79,93,470

(4,59,08,765)

(1,03,27,490)

15,90,061636

20r43,59,249

(21,45,071)

llrg2,gg,242

29,43161,250

(48,60,634)

16,18,70,899

lrl4rg31634

(10,48,12,215)

(92,12,666\

1,41,05,246

93r54,700

69,38,02,624

(2,09,39,334)

67,291641290-

67,29,64,290

(1,57,86,39,700)

1130,85r131565

(2,50,00,000)

(26,70,76,547)

(56,22,02,682)

(15,90,06,636)

1,03,27,490

20,40,61,463

5,63r821317

312gr5grglg

20,01r02r944

3,05,53,103

3,75,68,683

(76,25,109\

(22,42,001\

(2,03,96,459\

12,91,01,916

16169,70,034

(21,72,563)

11,82,25,004

(15,04,98,711)

66,49,429

14r33182,062

35134,326

10,16,32,049

3,57,82,297

19,35,793

(79,44,183)

41,74,95,527

(1,03,13,515)

40,7lrg2r0l2-

40,71,82,012

(1,05,86,544)

3,10,19,300

2,01r42r001

(39,99,10,203)

(35,93,35,446)

(12,91,01,916)

2103,86,459

6,14109,709

(4,73,06,650)

3r24r19,004

3,29r5g,glg
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Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31 March.2022 ( contd..)

For the year ended tr'or the year ended

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in Hand

Balance with Banks in current accounts

Deposits with banks

Total Cash and Cash equivalent

3lMarcho2022 31 March,2021

Rs. P.

4,62,229

16,67,33,634

3,29,06982

20,01,02,844

Rs. P.

17,31,477

65,917

3,11,61,525

3r29r58r919

Previous Years' figures have been regrouped I year s' classification. rearanged , wherever necessary to confirm to current year
Classification.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

In terms of our reports attached
tr'or and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES Gautam Agarwalla Amit Agarwalla
CharteredAccountants DIN: 00413204 DIN: 00413345
Firm Registration No. 0322153E Managing Director Director- CFO

DEEPAKAGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:2205558OAJOLQD3 I 23

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(a) (i) Corporate Information
Frontier Warehousing Limited (formerly known as Frontier Warehousing private Limited) CN:
U70109WB1990PTC048431 is a public Limited Company incorporated in India with itslegistered office at East India
House, 20B, Abdul Hamid Street. 3'd Floor, Suite 3F. Kolkata - 700069.

(ii) The equity shares of the Company are not listed in any stock exchanges in India or abroad.

(iii) Bengal Water Proof Ltd. having CfN no-I117297W81940PLC010328 and PANAABCB2876R has been merged with
the company effect from 0l/01 12018.

(iv) The Company has been converted into Public Limited Company during the year under review.

(v) The Company is principally engaged in the business of Development of Land & Warehousing.

(b) Basis of Preparation:
These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting principles in India
(Indian GAAP), including the Accounting Standards under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 20l3.The financial
statements are prepared on accruals basis under the historical cost Convention and are presented in Indian rupees.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of produits and the time betweenih. u.q:rrirition of assets
for processing and their tealization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating .y"t. as l2months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(c) Critical accounting estimates
(r) useful lives andresidual values of property, prant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a material portion of Company's asset base. The periodic charge of depreciation is
derived after estimating useful life of an asset and expected residual ,rul.r. at the end of its useful life. The useful lives and
residual values of assets are estimated by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end. The lives are based on various external and intemal factors including historical
experience, relative efficiency and operating costs and charge in technology.

(ir) Income Taxes
The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes
including amounts to be recovered or paid for uncertain tax positions. Management judgrnent is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets / liabilities that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits.

(iiD Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.
Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or ur" rrery difficult to quantif,i..tiubty are treated as
contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in notes but are noi recognized.

(d) Taxes
Income tax expenses comprise current income tax and deferred income tax. Income tax expenses is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in other comprehensive income or other equity as the case may be.

Current income tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.
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Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized foe
all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carty forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduces to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax asset are re-assessed at each reporting date are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled. Based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off tax assets against tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

( e) Property, Plant and equipment and Depreciation :

(a) Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment, are measured at cost (which includes capitalized borrowing costs, If any) less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment

includes its purchase price, duties taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling, removing and restoring the site on

which it is located .The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials,

direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to brining the item to its intended working condition and estimated cost

of dismantling, removing and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components)

of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
profit and loss.

ii. Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure

willflow to the company.

iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of property, plant and equipment less that their estimated residual value using straight line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated of assets estimated by the company based on an internal technical evaluation
performed by the Company and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance lease are

depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Depreciation for assets purchased/ sold during the period is proportionately
charged. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at eachfinancial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line-basis, from the month of addition, using the

estimated useful lives based on single shift, as specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of the

assets:
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Asset Description

Office buildings

Warehouse Building

Electric Installation

Office Equipment's

Motor Vehicles

Pant & Machinery

i)
ii)
iiD
iv)

Useful life under schedule II

60 years

60 years

10 years

10 years

8 years

l0 years

iv. Capital work-in-Progress
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/ under Development and
administrative expenses incurred for the purposes of construction has been appropriated to capital Work in Progress as at the
balance sheet date.

(0 RevenueRecognition:
The Company recognizes the revenue on an accrual basis. The company recognizes revenue on Licensing of the premises of
Warehouse based on the agreement/ affangement with the concerned customers

By identifuing the contract(s) with a customer

Identifuing the performance obligation of the contract
Determine the Transaction price
Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation

and is net of discounts and applicable taxes i.e., GST, service Tax, etc when the Warehouse is licensed to the customer. Other
operating income comprises income from activities incidental to the operations of the company and is recognized as and
when the right to receive the income is established Profit/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets are stated with reference to their
Written down Value determined on the basis of their historical cost. Interest and other Income is accounted for on accrual
basis.

(g) Functional Currency
The Functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are represented in Indian rupees (
rounded offl.

(h) Earnings Per Share:
The basic earnings per Share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attibutable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders are the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(i) Provisions & Contingent Liability:
C) General
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

(k) Obligations and Contingent Liabilities
A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are
also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
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0) Borrowings Cost:
Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to the acquisition and construction of the qualifying assets are added to the cost up to the

date when such asset are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which
these are incurred.

(m) Gratuity& Leave Encashment:
Contribution to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund Etc are recognized as expenses in the period in which

the employee renders the service.

The Company has a defined gratuity payment plan with LIC of India. Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and Leave

Encashment are considered as defined benefit obligations and is provided for on the basis of third-party actuarial valuation,

as at the date of Balance Sheet.

(n) Investments:
They are valued at cost. Diminution in the value of investments, if any are not accounted for if they are temporary in nature.

(o) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of twelve months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the

statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are

considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(q) Earning per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after

deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a right
issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidated of shares). For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average

number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(r) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occuffence

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured

reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but disclose its existence in the financial statements.

(s) Retirement Benefits (Bengal Waterproof Ltd)
a. Defined Benefit Plan

The company contributes to the quali$ring Group Gratuity cum Life Insurance Policy of Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LICD based on the premium Notices as per the actuarial valuation carried out by themselves, which are charged to revenue.

b. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has Defined Benefit Plans for its employees' retirement benefits comprising of Provident / Other Funds,

which are recognized by the Income Tax Authorities and administered through its Trustees / appropriate authorities. The

Company contributesto Provident Fund Trust respect of its covered employees. Interest rates payable by the Trust to the

beneficiaries every year is being notified by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any, between the return from the investment of the trust and notified interest rate. The Company also contributes to State

Plans namely, Employees' State Insurance (ESD Fund and Employees' Pension Scheme 1995. Contributions paid/payable

during the period I year to Company's Provident Fund, Pension Fund, Employees' State Insurance Corporation are

recognized in the Profit & Loss Account on accrual basis.

c. Leave encashment is accounted for on actual payment (cash) basis.

;iir; s ;;

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U70109WB I 990PLC04843 1

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3lstMarch,2022



Amount in Rupees
pARTICULARS Asat Asat

NorE : 02 - Share capitar 3Lstularch?ozz 31st March 2021

a) Authorised
2,77,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each Z7JS$O0OO Z7,7S,OOJOO

2,50,000 (17.5o/o Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each) 2S,OO,0OO ZS,O0,OO0

28,O0,00,ooo 2g,oo,oo,00o
b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
7,83,24,443 Equity Shares of @ Rs L0 / - each
(P.Y. 7,83,24,443 Eq Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

L8,32,44,430 L8,32,44,43O

c) Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares Outstanding at the begrnning and at the end of the year

PARTICUIIIRS F.y,2O2t_2O22 F.Y.2O2O_2O21-
NUMBERS RUPEES NUMBERS RUPEES

( to share holder of Bengal Waterproof Ltd.) #

Equity shares outstanding atthe end of the year !,83,24,443 19,32,44,430 L,g3,24,443 !g,32,44,430

# Equity Shares issued to shareholders of Bengal Waterprof Ltd. represents shares issued on merger of the company

d) Right ofshareholders ofEquity Shares ofRs. LO/- each

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share . Every member of the company holding any equity
share capital shall have right to vote , in respect of such capital,on resolution placed before the company and his voting right on the poll shall
be in proportion to his share of the paid up equity capital of the company.

e) Details of Equity Shares held by shareholders holding more than 59/o of the aggregate shares in the company

As at 31st Nlarch,Z0?2 As at 31st March,Z0Zl
Name of The shareholdet 

No. of shares held 7o of holding in the class No. of shares held o/o of holding in the class

RASHA IND. PVT LTD L,28,42,5OO 70.Ogo/o L,28,42,5OO 7o.Ogo/o
RAIHANSH MERCHANTS PRIVATE LTD 24,OO,OOO L3.l|o/o

L8,32,44,43O 18,32,44,43O

t,83,24,443 19,32,44,430 t,75,L4,65O L7,51,46,5OO
8,O9,793 80,97,93O

Equity shares at the beginning of the year
Add: issued during the year

Name of The Promoter

1. RASHA IND. PRIVATE LIMITED
2, ALW ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
3. NEHA AGARWALLA
4. AMIT AGARWALLA
5. ANUSH AGARWALLA
6. GAUTAM AGARWALLA
7. PRITI AGARWALLA
B. GAUTAM AGARWALLA [HUF)
9. AMITAGARWALLA [HUF)
10. AVNI AGARWALLA
11. AKSHARAAGARWALLA
12. AANYA AGARWALLA

A L W ESTATE PVT LTD tg,6g,750 lO.74o/o

As per Records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding bene[lcial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneElcial ownership of shares

0 Details of Equity Shares held by Promoters

24,00,000
L9,68,750

L3.l0o/o
LO.74o/o

As at 31st Nlarch,2O22

*';i',:3It* yo ortotar shares 
"'" tfl;;1;""t 

Remarks

1,29,42,500 70.09
19,68,750 L0.74
t,37,79L 0.72
L,03,574 0.57

78,232 0.43
91,4L3 0.44
27,117 0.15
52,736 0.29
48,60t 0.27
16,050
72,045
t2,587

0.09
0.07
0.07

:.r, 
Addition

Total L,53,75,39O 83.91 0.03
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PARTICULARS

NOTE : 03 - Reserve &Surplus
A. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

B. Capital Reserves #

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

# Capital reserve mainly Represents amount transferred on amalgamation with
erstwhile Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

C. Capital Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

D. Revaluation Account

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

E. General Reserves

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

F.Total (B+C+D+E)

Retained Earnings
G. Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement in Profit and Loss

Opening Balance

Add: Net Pro&t for the year

Closing Balance

Total Closing Balance (A+F+G)

NOTE : 04 - Long Term Borrowings
Secured Loan

tlTiffifEii-k- rerm Loar, - ^e/c,o-szos
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against Property Mortgage Loan against property of EMI

58807L/- Repayable in periodic instalments up to a period of 123
months from |anuary'2079 to December'2029

(B) ICIC Bank Loan -Alc no 2808

Less: Instalments due within next72 months

Secured against Mortgage loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 56513/- upto
L0.02.22 after onwards @20164L /- in 60 months From March202L
to February'2026

Asat Asat
31st Marcla?Oz? 31st Marc}azOZL

Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

28,19,87,5OO

28,19,87,5OO

28,09,52,339
28,09,52,339

1,50,000
1,50,000

71,o7,22,294

77,,O7,22,294

4,56,93,645

4,s6,93,645
L,O3,75,18,278

(35,17,O7,587)
3,38,67,065

(31,78,4O,523)

1,00,16,65,255

3,62,68,L61
(4L,55,790)

go,g4,36o

(L8,2L,362)

28,19,87,5OO

28,L9,87,5OO

28,09,52,339
28,09,52,339

1,50,000
1,50,000

7L,O7,22,294

71,o7,22,294

4,56,93,645

4,56,93,645

1,O3,75,18,278

(37,L9,47,L75)
2,O2,39,588

(35,17,O7,587)

96,77,98,191

4,OO,38,699
(37,8O,78L)

82,20,OOO

(1,4s,128)
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PARTICULARS

(C) Indusind Bank Limited - Term Loan

Secured against construction of Warehousing complex, Loan will be
due and repayable in bullet instalment at the end of 36 months date
of first disbursement, and further extended by 6 months i.e., from
October 2022.

(D) Indusind Bank Limited - Term Loan-Ac no- 0333

Less: Instalments due within next L2 months

Secured against Property Mortgage Loan of Flexible , for
construction of warehouse, EMI in every month,Repayable in
periodic instalment in 144 months from fanuary'2O18 to
December'2029

(E) Indusind Bank Limited Term Loan-A/c no -1041

Less: Instalments due within next L2 months

Assignment of existing as well as future lease rental of the property ,

extension of charge on equitable mortgage land & building .

(F) Indusind Bank Limited Term Loan-A/c no-3712

Less: Instalments due within nextt? months
Business Purpose Loan

Secured against Mortgage Loan of Flexible EMI in every month
,Repayable in periodic instalment in 84 months from fuly '2019 to
lune'2026

(G) Aditya Birla Finance Ltd. -Alc no 3047

Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against Lease Rental Discounting , Repayment EMI's Rs.

3389992/- in231, months From April' 2018 to luly 2037

(H) Aditya Birla Finance Ltd - A/c no-8399

Less: Instalments due within next L2 months

Secured against Lease Rental Discounting , Repayment EMI's Rs.

2547067 / - in 228 months From May'2 0 18 to Decemb er' 2037 .

(I) AdiWa Birla Finance Ltd - A/c no 6384

Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against Lease Rental Discounting , Repayment EMI's Rs.

635744/- in 116 months From |uly 20L9 to March '2029.

0) Axis Bank loan - A/c no- 6993

Less: Instalments due within nextL2 months

Secured against car loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 108761 /- in 63
months From November'z}L9 to |anuary'2024.

As at As at
31st Marc}a?Ozz 31st March?Ozl

Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

41,76,O5,O9O 33,98,93,686

57,94,33,243
(2,96,30,000)

6,L8,12,5OO
(40,35,000)

4,99,O4,79L
(8t,4O,2L7)

33,7O,22,331
(66,00,000)

24,07,18,535
(43,92,OOO)

4,54,96,95L
(42,96,OOO)

2L,54,393
(11,62,692)

62,14,83,572
(3,45,10,571)

6,50,07,6_90

5,11,43,9O7
(27,29,822)

33,56,54,L51
(45,13,699)

25,19,54,926
(33,33,416)

4,94,07,99O
(41,59,697)

32,19,817
(LO,65,424)
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PARTICUIITRS

(K) Yes Bank Loan - Ac no'6175

Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against car loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 54086 /- in37
months From August'2018 to August'Z0zL

(L) Kotak Mahindra Bank -A/c no-0015

Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against for construction of warehouse property, Repayment

EMI's inI23 months from April 2018 to f anuary'2030.

(M) Tata Capital Finance Services

Working Capital Demand Loan

First and exclusive charge by way of Mortgage on Property Standing

in the name Rasha Ind. Pvt. Ltd.

(N) Bank of Baroda Loan A/c

Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against car loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 33366/- in 36

months From February'2 022 to lanuary' 2025

(O) Canara Bank Loan A/c 2580

Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Lease Rental Discounting Loan,Mortgage on Property,Repayable in

179 step-up monthly instalments along with interest from 30.04.2022

to 28.02.2037

Asat Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Amount in Rupees Amount in RuPees

29,57,O3,779
(2,9O,45,2,O8)

2,64,694
(2,64,694)

31,62,67,483
(2,57,53,551)

4,81,62,668 4,85,99,526

10,2O,9L7

[3,38,709)

24,00,00,000

(48,00,000)

2,25,49,60,73L 2,O5,O8,99,268

NOTE :5 - Other LongTerm Liabilities
From Customers

Security Deposits against Licence Fees #

Security Deposit for Electricity #

Other Deposits

Advance against Sale of Property ##

tL,44,23,59O
4,92,58,800

10,34,886
29,66,94,OO1

7,AL,9B,OOZ
4,28,47,5OO
1,4O,34,8,86

16,75,00,000

46,O4,Lt,277 29,Bs,4O,3BB

# Deposits from customers are non interest bearing and repayable on termination of agreement, unless otherwise agreed

## The company has entered into agreements with various parties for sale of land/constructed space towards which it has

received advances. remaining unexecuted as at 31/03 /2022
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PARTICUII\RS

ruOfE r O0 - Sti".t f""rn
From other than Related Party
F@
From Related ParW

From a Director
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt

As at
31st March2022

Amountin Rupees

As at
31st March ZOZL

Amountin Rupees

6,35,00,000

s,zo,7oo
9,84,L6,979

18,65,51,12O

4,42,OOO

8,O2,56,773

16,24,37,678 26,72,49,893

NOTE : 07 - Trade Payables due for payment (Refer note no- 24)
MSME I Refer note no- 30)

Others

Disputed Dues - MSME I Refer note no- 30)
Disputed Dues - Others

3,68,06,036
43,2B,028

10,10,160

z,zo,zg,gtg

10,10,160

4,21,44,224 2,80,38,977.71

NOTE : 0B - Other Current Liabilities
Liabilities for Expenses
Advance from Customer
Statutory Dues
Other Liabilities
eEE-ilEliii6rth Banks in current A/.
Due to Excess Cheques Drawn

Indusind Bank
State Bank of India
FWPL Indusind Bank Escrow A/C

L,13,2!,759
17,7Og

1,32,3O,264

L,6g,77,glg

1,59,99,551

5,9o,574
41,O92

1,84,260

2,45,69,730 3,37,82,396

NOTE : 09 - Short Term Provisions
2,64,52,381 1,70,97,691
2,64,52,391 1,7O,97,681

46 lF,rg*

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited )

CIN: U70 I 09WB I 990PLC04843 1

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3lstMarch.2022



t--
cor\
o\€
U)
oi6t

\o
o\tl
t--
@

o\
@ut
(\lq.
rn

o\0o
<r
@-
@
j

<+
@
@6
c4
<r
ca

rt)
co_ti
m
IJ:}
oi
Fr

(\t
o
ri€-
m
\o
6(\l

m\o
6l
raq
rn
tJ)

m{rc')t\Q3 €E'S\..r.- FsP 6!2
J $R dPq o-r €-i
\OF{"+
{rctN
eri

\o
!lJ)

ts-
@

oo
o
Ol
Ol

S EE $Siri o. 1 +.1H 3s- sq
6 j.c{ (ri.H

E E{ EE
d c,ts odP
u) F{'-: (D el

ri 05= villLDc)O
-ij

Fa6t-sH3 EE SH.
.o- t-- 

= 
e.i I

-!. f\ 6l
oi +'ln d'+
m6tm

\Oeao\6rcoE $Q S{N 5E SB.
ca -F -lCr,)\O

6t<.r)6ims E{ sas 33- =Ed {* qs
-F Ct\ -- Fl
0O- Fl 6l

Noq
14)
@
dt)
ori
6l
FT

F{ trl 
=l 

Fr sl6r (\t .=l Ft sto o Q.:30 a oe\I 61 e\l .i{ !: q c\lN E E gX S S

= sJ P gl= sr u
:HE = EA.B E E
H--H--H,El Hq6Hq-H
oi:(l.)c=(u5loJc,:c)c=6JP.9U9.9U9tr| 9.oU9.oA9

H*E +*E +* d*E +*E +*(JlEl < O E < O Ca <lE < O E < A Et

fl1\oHN\o$ $R'EE
rn- eri 

= 
+,- 9!

+CO=\o-=
\O F{ Ca
<r

cao6amqNm-1t,r
c.iq icr\-m
Fl - \c)

Ocq6aF\5c- Raoi!9 r,. eo
-F u: :-i-f+.'j-i

ER Eg.$s- s3-
uior il.Hta co

\.o\Oo$ strri rri :9sl 6r e'
e.i e.iO\ O\

Or+HNOO\u)+o\-or-
ryln-n\o\q.o\o+^io\r\m6o\l-:m\o
G\bm:\oblJ)- o- trI 

= 
@- .o-

F\ H N 'lN NN\gbm

6I

,o

o\

:OO:Hsa=-ss
:i o- r')- .; m-

--NH_-O\O"O\:-
rri lli Bo\ ol

8[ ERsi s{gs Ks
d -ir

$qiuER
Hs.+.Rq.q
$*s$Bs
-i-i

(!

F

€6
PCtr '=
JU
Oi q)

=

o)

o
L)

q
6)
u
o

€., (l)g,E

IIl

t< -s
c)i5
Er=

e,
Ph!
6.=
EE'(t.)=,=sca

o,)(J

tro

r!

€
-fq
I')

=.tJ)

+q
6t

rn
Nq
mr\
r--
IJ)
I'\q.
CY)

rJ) cf)o:\ v)at
\o' oi
HSI

-'$rJ1 rJ)
:' sioo\
e.t'

\o o\+r\ry),m
<r oiO\O
ri$o:\ \o
\o' o-
HCO
m'

(\dc\*\oLor)rJ1o\+u)m+D\\o@\o@\orno
rn- ro^ m' r-' cri o.- o.-
N(\{U)SlF\Hcr)
m- co- r.t- r-' r-' o.- sr-m@u)c\cf)
m' eo' m'st r.\:'

+clOFrO\cr++No.I\.c)m!+a.ImOF-sl .+oo\@o\+
oi co- +- oi oi :- co- sr-+o\:\ooF\@o
oi co' r-' m^ ro' od oi
:e@FlcOr<
+' $ r--u) rJ.)

-r' .j

F{
t\lo.!
moql-i

HmE*Eel€
-t
El N

=l s
=l ^rEl B.i

oa
P(!
q

Arl
6rl6t
6tl
6lol
.il
oal
al
lrllalzqJ
d
lrl
>il
!.J

F{
d
fl -ot

"J 
nl

H6lzrJl/llrl t-l
E=lH
t{
3sqJ
2t
<t2l
E&lsJ ral3gE-l olol=

HE
,d
d
rd
vl
art
6il
H
ol
AJ
d
E
ol

=t.g
d

g
=t6JlflEt3?t 

El

H 3et ;s* E g 
$

H HH=€EsgSsS HHg

4TlFagr:

I

t



c.)6t
o
€J
oz
o)
q)
L
ar,q
(l)

aoo
tr

o

=6
E.
Cl,

L'
-i+

Orr\
c.1
oi\o
<r
-.o-e
ca

E R H F E H E R H[ xHi+hiH
= = s R = E .E s EI S +eE >fi*

El = -€ -€El = 3 € + E 
=l 

iEs+Ep+
;I E S EEI E :-E =-E EI EHEEHEE
El E ns H 2E HEI H 2:E= E ?:EZ H Sl HEEEEEE.El gEEg.EEg.flgE:ri;=.o:iEg El g.EE g.EE g

El * E +* 
= 

A* H* E + *+ E + a* -Et * E i=* = _i*

S EH Ets.S.
= sq sREE q* r{SB
\o- <t- X-l sr- ii 6
- 

Itl Ch
e.:-

-lros.6le
o.-

+
oaq.
@
@

6t
FI
@-

l.-
co-
ca

c'\
-fq
o\a-
rJ1

oa

ori
-.D-e.)

o\oq.
-lr
r--
co-
t\
Lf:)

-<_

(\I
N(\I
@-
o\
@-

-!.rtt.\
o.-

=.o\
+-
frD

-t_

L,tOOO\ONN
Xi\<io:
.i O\ ef) F\

= 

crJ- co- \o-
i\OCObE=.iS

F{hmo^ r-ril

o\oooto r-/)
o- r--o: co
o.

OOOCf)LTt-\OOr@N<t'
trl-a b 'a

n o? ;j Ln-
*' F.l st-

\O ef) rjt f\ OHNO\*r-.)CO
o: ro- o: ni o: r<)-
r-r)co+^-co\o
o-oo\=-il o:
\O r\ ^- c{ c\Ir-r1 3 Ej H

RES SSE
\ \ o: s, \o- cf)-
r-r1 CN =i a- O +.o- .q a i< Lq -1
=e{Lr)r{-<F

ef)or\*e)Cf)
L') O. r:=a'rycdo:\s^ E SsB_
So\F-=

SI

F\Or-tl)ONHCf)boHo-N<)
co- o- ry o- G co- o-
c60c)e--\.o\o\o- o- ro- r-r)- i; ee- \+SIH.]OL')s-'s q.E^s
f\ Cr]l COF\

\
<'@-r\\OD\F-\O@r-r)
COr\F\'=NoF'
r-/)-o.^-=ic\I
aao-:5\o^r\ o. co _- o\ o.
:--HE-""',-

ci':)

O\ -i- - 
At O\qq qEE \H-q +.Rq. E-

ol. \.c| SI -j H rr')
cfi r{ eo_ 

= 
r-a)^ \.o-

r-t:) sl 'a @ F\SI er:l \.O

-r- 
6l

cJ
^ilel
6II
6al
AI:l
oarl
al
lrllal2l
lrllel<tlr:l

=lEI
-lel-ol Plfl;t

tl:l F-l
rJjtl zl
-l i:rlla=l

E-l
fll

=lSI(Jl
2l
<l2l
lrl
rql 9l

=t alol <!
-l arl
vtl =lE3l -El

=t El
-t,r=l
EI
Rtl
qlqa
ol
H
EIo.l
sl

-:alLIol

=lcil
PI
.ot6l(Jl

J

EIol
EI
ET.a
trll
=lEI6lslEI6l
cLl
>{
EIolotol
LIo.l

48 lFag*

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited )

CIN: U70109WB 1990PLC04843 1

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3lstMarch,2022

ct
o
E-

>\oab
Pc
E€o. c)

=

t<q)

E.
o

e)

qJ

q

o) e)ec
eo.o'= g

lrl

H-=
ESE?

o)
2Eo

-=l 'trt
6)=
L=s-

(l)
IE
o

E
G,



o
F z2

lr

a

&II
A

tr

3
U
z
Fz

(n

irP(!
olorr>
o
E

o

q)x
m
N

o

0)

N

o
>'

E

oo
6)I

I
3(J F

r5 IUUoo'= '=HEo. o.

3l
d
oJl
-d
El
ol
>t
'Fl

-d
5l
EI
ol

EJ

d

oI
di
d
a,
4q
el
EI

dg
a

;l
ol
6)lg
ol,
hl

-ela
r,l
6Jl

€l
vn
bl

ol
EI
6l
ol
d
3l
ol

q
ol
ol
ol
H
ol

rl
.d
!l
LI
ol

:l
rd

ol
6lgl

d
ril
-ol

o

o

a

C]
o

o
o

L

d

o

u
oxo
x

C)r

o

OJ

0)
L
b0

o

o
o

6
o
q)

0)

q)

6()
O.o

(J>
oho

o6!poO
!o,bo

Eq

(d9
i5 ili
L.o>
U6
VE

.9u
toot

o.o
O,E

>o

=gro:.to!4
qC
oi
H9
q(!

O-
9.:

o6

Ftr

Nl
r.il
ol
r.!l
ml
cl
c6l

alr{
ol
A
rdl

el
<t
tdtt
EI
FI
d
ol
EI

-lHz
rdl
>t
H
f,t
tAt

J4
UI
2l

a
EI
frJl

EI
t-l
ol
FI
ol
rrl
FI
ol
zl

6
o
F

ocoou
+to€
o€('l. rt
(nF.

N

c0f!
o
+I
tf

lr
o

&
td
a

&
lr

3
U
z
Fz

E

m

6o
P(!
oc)li>
o

o
6
o

m
N

c0
+
@
m
m

o
+
@
m
m

oli(!
o

N

L(!
o

(!

oo
o
:l

o
rn
+
\o
6
N
N
N

ou
9.
o.!
t
N

A

3
U

i.,i o
.gEy6)

G(!
6til
o>

!ai'Eij he
E!=9 *
tseE Er!?o otvt?

!8a t
B rd .g'FE J E:,;ui I
o=

(!
o

(J

o
0)

(!

0,)

b0

qJ

!

o

oo(!
0)

"r<hBB

!*
.L
i9
trq)
al
ES

u'a'is.{F
P.= 6
d'ct
5BB

t.q.:

ES9
Aq:

tsEs
.=^6
! u=
U +E
ru8"

\
ss$
S ot
es FIUF
.uf8
d'9 ti
L.i+J.

: >!
S i"t4
E E€'-oh
1J(J Bi
Eo.Sar F

\B O

BaS
a-\'q

'q F rB'J

oEP
l- Ut

q)rt
qa)

i'e
B.ha.5si
,9 S-

-'Ptr:

0*
$:

E".
e.{
o
!au
€tr\
s9-

P$

69
{B

0)

r6Jotr9:
6J'= !

r

o

N:o\,Y po
N6X

i'- z

N
N

N

d

N

N

N

m

N

tE;i;:
E&i!!-ae.
IolbEhO6!el={-
-E.r I O ! o

!,EEFbE
=EE 

a E

t t {z

o

.!L

EOOE

o

F

L
a
L
oPJ
i-psr

C6

b0

co

d
P^

'io J
,h

!P
ath
a
ti

U

b0

-]
q)

o.
6

q!

x
l. 6J

UE
o>6

g

N
co

F..
ui

\o

s
eiro

\o
F..'

qi

\n
Ni

o

o

OL
of'EEar
o
o
n

(!
J

$
trl

0.1

q
It

.ol
(.I
{.1
rJEd

'i rJ
!t

.\|
:l

,rdg
trl
al
dEdjsl

(,

EO6:
EIA
6JOE9
c.l!
tr.E
G16
o
o/

o

a

t!
c<s
u0)

=o+<
>E
EbDotro.((

o

t!

<8
!O)

=6iI<o.o
>€
Eb0otro.d

I
q)

<6
co6!4
o.<
,'o
ob!
o6
IL
o. '-

49 lPagr:

I

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited )

CIN: U70 1 09WB 1 990PLC04843 |
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3lstMatch,2022

L

7



PARTICUIIIRS

NOTE : 11 - Long Term Loans and Advances
Capital Advances

(refer note no- 28)

NOTE : 12 - Current Investments
Trade Investment in EquiW Shares (Un- Quoted) ( subsidiary)

Asat Asat
3lst March 2022 31st March 2021

Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

27,14,23,OOO 56,57,94,250
27,14,23,OOO 56,57,84,250

2,50,00,000

2,50,o0,000

NOTE : 13 - Trade Receivables (Refer note no- 25)
( Unsecured, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good

(iiJ Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

[iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

[iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

L,Og,68,744 88,23,673

1,O9,68,744 88,23,673

NOTE : 14- Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand (As certified by the management)

Balance with Banks

With Schedule bank in CurrentA/c

Deposit with Original Maturity of less than 12 Months

[Represents deposits marked as under lien with Bank towards Guarantees)

4,62,228

16,67,33,634

3,29,06,982

17,31,477

65,917

3,11,61,525

20,O1,O2,g44 3,29,58,919

NOTE : 15- ShortTerm Loans andAdvances

Loans and Advances

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless stated otherwise)
To Body Corporates
Other Advances

Balance with Government Authorities
Unsecured, Considered good
Balance With Govt. Authorities

5,52,596
4,4O,24,512

6,69,5O,362

8,16,03,338
6,46,36,571

8,45,95,793
L1,15,27,460 23,O8,25,702

NOTE : 15- Other CurrentAssets
Deposits
D eposit with Govt. Authorities ( Against Appeal)
Tax Payments

1,34,O5,484
5,99,173

6,39,OO,O76

2,O1,66,196
5,99,173

s,22,78,740
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L PARTICULARS

NOTE : 17- Revenue From Operations
License Fees Received

Asat Asat
31st Marchz0zz 31st Marcla?Ozl

Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

26,29,L3,3O5 t9,72,O5,245

26,29,r3,3O5 L9,72,O5,245

NOTE : 18- Other Income
Interest on Loans

Interest on FD

Interest on I. Tax Refund
Interest received against CESC Security
Capital Gain on sale of Mutual Fund
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Sundry Balance Written Back

57,96,390
19,3g,3gg
15,15,940
LO,85,862

4,59,O8,765
L,94,4L1

1,56,32,897
1g,11,oog
15,39,665
13,o2,BBB
22,42,OO1

76,25,LOg
19,924

5,64,3O,666 3,O2,72,392

NOTE : 19- Employee Benefits Expenses

Salary, Wages & Allowances

Contribution to ESIC & EPF

Staff Welfare & Compensation

Gratuity Paid

73,49,OO1

2,14,3L2
20,31,L34

L,52,251

68,35,359

1,54,847

L1,73,373

2,O9,358

97,46,698 83,72,937

NOTE : 20- Finance Cost
Interest on Bank
Interest on Unsecured Loan
Interest on Car Finance

Interest on TDS

Interest on P. Tax
Interest on M. Tax
Bank Charges

13,76,18,87l
1,55,35,759

2,51,764
41,90,557

3,150
73,O97

3,43,448

1L,77,96,4O8
9s,79,465
3,78,8t4

22,47,695
34,385

65,050

15,80,06,636 L2,gL,O,-,816

NOTE : 21- Depreciation and Amortisation Cost

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 4,78,83,47O 3,75,68,683

4,78,83,47O 3,75,69,693
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PARTICULARS

NOTE :22- Other Expenses

Auditors Remuneration
- Statutory & Tax Audit Fees

- For CFS

- Internal Audit Fees

Commission & Brokerage
Electricity Charges Reimbursed (net)

Miscellaneous Expenses
Insurance Charges
Directors Sitting Fees

Employer - Employee Scheme Insurance
Key man Insurance
Membership Fees

Motor Car Expenses
Processing Charges
Legal & Professional fees

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Repairs and Maintenance
- Building
- Maintenance
- Others
Travelling Expenses
( including foreign travel)

As at As at
31st Marclaz0zz 31st Marc}rz0zl

Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

2,75,OOO
25,000

1,00,000
L,44,98,L'O

57,83,694
t9,93,749
t9,59,347

2,2O,OOO

1,13,58,078
20,15,750
12,53,369

7,36,407
6,74,934

22,56,482
L6,2L,535

6,L2,627
L7,75,4L8

1,57,800
16,84,429

2,00,000

14,54,544
1,92,598

1o,o7,379
L3,43,982

1,20,000
go,o5,73g

19,97,740
2,51,709
5,L2,OLO
5,12,4OO
2,32,25O

22,4t,275

7,+,28,265
L6,OL,g7L

1,70,050
6,09,L86

4,9O,OL,769 2,l8,BL,OgB

NOTE : 23- Work In Progress
Salary, Wages & Allowances

(lncluding Directors Remuneration)

Material & Construction Expenses

Interest Paid

Other Expenses

Insurance

Rent Rates & Taxes

Land Filling ( Gobra Dankuni Land)

1,65,01,563

19,O9,54,339

5,65,93,611

46,29,O89

13,30,013

26,55,965

3,38,04,800

4,95,99,7L5

65,66,L7,L49

17,23,60,995

3,42,4O,647
56,51,934

69,59,2L3

30,64,69,380 92,54,29,653
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NOTE NO - 24 -Trade Payables ageing schedule Amount in Rupees

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

Particulars

D MSME

ii) Others
iii) Disputed dues -MSME

iv) Disputed dues - others

payment
Less than I tZvears 2-3 More than 3

year - years years

Total

3,68,06,036
43,28,028

10,10,160
4,2,-,44,224

3,68,06,036
26,20,601

Total 3,94,26,637

-- 
17,02,+ZZ

10,10,160
27,L7,587

NOTE NO - 25 -Trade Receivable ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

[i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered
doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered
good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered
doubtful

Total

Less than 6 6 months to 1 L-2
months year years

1,09,68,744

2-3 years More than, Total

years

1,,09,68,744

L,Og,68,744 - ,,or,og,7++

NOTE : 26-Relationship with Struck OffCompanies

Nature of Transactions with Struck - Off
Company

Investments in Securities
Receivables
Payables
Shares held by Struck off Cornpany
Other outstanding balance ( to be specified)

Total

Balance
Outstanding

Relationship with the Struck off Company, if any, to be
disclosed

NOTE : 27- Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

Where the Company has traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during
the financial year, the following shall be disclosed:-

(a) Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virtual Currency,

[b) Amount of currency held as at the reporting date,

[c) Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose oftrading or investing in Crypto

Currency / or Virtual Currency.

F.Y.202r-2022

Nil
Nil

Nil

53 lF*ge

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited )

, CIN:U70109wB1990PLC048431
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3lstMarch,2022



NOTE : 28 Amount in Rupees
The following disclosures shall be made where Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs

[a) Repayable on demand

[b) Mthout specifying any terms or period of repaymen!

Capital Advances

Nil

Type of Borrower

Promoter Company

Directors

KMPs

Related Parties

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans

and Advances in the nature of
loans

86.74 o/o

Nil

Nil

Nil

Capital Advances 23,54,45,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

NOTE- 29 Financial Ratios

a) Current Ratio

b) Debt - equity Ratio

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio

d) Return on equity Ratio

eJ Inventory Turnover Ratio

fJ Trade Receivables Turnover

Numerator

Current assets

Total Debt

Earnings avl for Debt Service

Net Profit for year

Inventory

Denominator

Current liabilities

Shareholders equity

Debits Service

Average shareholders

equity

Turnover

Average trade

receivables

Average trade payables

Working Capital

(cunent assets-current

liabilities)

Revenue from
operations

Capital employed (Net

wotth+borrowing+leas
e liabilities)

Average Investments

AS AT

31.03.2022

2.16

L2,84

7.26

1.85

AS AT

3L.03.202L %o variance

LlS.B2o/o

121.270/o

3L.450/o

773.770/o

0.00%o

L61.990/o

0.00%

154.750/o

2.620/o

Ratio Revenue from operations

g) Trade Payables Turnover Rati Net Credit purchases

23.97

1.00

11.63

0.94

0.11

22.35

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio

i) Net Profit Ratio

j) Return on capital employed

k) Return on Investment

Revenue from operations

Net Profit for the year

Profits before tax and finance

costs

Income Generated From

Treasury

1.55

0.13 0.10

0.040,04 0.750/o

0.00%

The above increase is due to increase in Trade Receivables , Trade payables on account of Revenue Growth as
compared to previous year.
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NOTE- 30- Disclosure of Related Party Transactions:

Parties with whom transactions have been taken place during the year:

Parties

Rasha lnd. Private limited
Teasel Realty Pvt. Ltd.

Gautam Agarwalla

Amit Agarwalla
Anush Agarwalla
Priti Agarwalla
RishiBajoria
Charu Rajgarhia

Milan Bhatia
Dipankar Biswas

Neha Agarwalla

Balance as on 31.03.2022

Investments

Nature of Transactions:

1. For Services

i) Renumeration to Executive Directors
Gautam Agarwalla

Amit Agarwalla

Priti Agarwalla

Anush Agarwalla

ii) For Salary

Dipankar Biswas

Neha Agarwalla

Milan Bhatia

iiil Insurance Premium

Gautam Agarwalla

Amit Agarwalla

Priti Agarwalla

Anush Agarwalla

Neha Agarwalla

iv) lndependent Directors Sitting Fees

Rishi Bajoria

Charu Rajgarhia

2. Works Contract Outstanding Amount
Rasha lnd. (P) Limited

i. Works Contract Paid During the Year

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited - S.M. Bose Phase -ll

Relationship

Holding Company
Subsidiary Company

Key Management Personne!(KMP)

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Key Management Personne!(KMPI

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Company Secretary

Related to KMP

Related to KMP

Relationship Amount in RuPees

Subsidiary Company 2,50,00,000

AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2O2L

Rs. Rs.

50,00,000

24,00,000

L7,4O,OOO

12,00,000

60,00,000

24,00,000

16,20,000

12,00,000

1,13,40,000 L,L2,2O,OOO

9,18,000

L7,4O,OOO

4,76,32O

9,18,000

13,20,000

5,79,572
3L,34,32O 28,L7,572

52,97,228
24,95,t65
L5,74,650

2L,g6,5LO

t8,3O,275

44,57,5L3

4,4O,649

15,63,649

19,77,5LO

15,64,L59

L,33,73,828 L,OO,O3,47g

1,10,000

1,10,000

50,000

60,000

2,2O,OOO 1,20,000

3168,061036

2L,42,18,L55

3,43,24,739

28,3L,49,960
25,LO,24,L9L 3L,74,74,699
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NOTE- 30- Disclosure of Related Party Transactions:

Nature of Transactions:
AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022

Rs.

AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021-

Rs.

3. Capital Advance

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited

4. Reimbursement of Expenses

23,54,45,OOO 35,65,30,000

23,54,45,OOO 35,65,30,000

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited

i) Balance as at year ended, Amounts Payable

3,24,24,758 3,59,88,2L3

3,24,24,758 3,59,88,213

Anush Agarwalla

Gautam Agarwalla

Milan Bhatia

Anush Agarwalla

Dipankar Biswas

ii) Transaction made During the Year

7,85,349

46,000

7,85,349
72,OOO

3,92,L49
4,42,OOO

3,92,t49
67,932

16,gg,69g L2,94,23O

Amit Agarwalla ( Paid & Received during the year)

Gautam Agarwalla ( Paid during the year)

Gautam Agarwalla ( Received during the year)

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited ( Paid & Received during the year)

24,0o,ooo

5,47,55,556
5,47,55,5_56

11,55,000

2,66,7L,3LO

2,7L,t3,3LO
6,69,65,000

LL,tg,IL,LL2 L2,L9,O4,620
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Particulars For the Financial Year
2021--2022

For the Financial Year
2020 --2021

Profit for the year after tax 3,38,67,065 2,02,39,588

No of Shares No of Shares

Weighted average number of Equity Shares in calculating
Basic and Diluted EPS

183,24,443 183,24,443

Basic and D uted earnings per share (Rs.) 1.85 1.10

Nominal Value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

NOTE-31). Earnings Per Share (EPS)

NOTE- 32). Retirement Benefits:( in the maffer of Bengal Waterproof Ltd - merged entity)

(i) As per consistent practice, the liability on account of leave encashment has neither been ascertained nor provided for in these accounts,

as the same is accounted for on actual payment basis.

(ii) The Gratuity Schemes, for both the categories of employees namely, Life Assurance cash accumulation Policy offered by Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LICI)is in existence. The estimated unfunded Gratuity liabilities was ascertained on the last occasion

Rs.1,00,44,928l- based on the actuarial valuation under Projected Unit Credit Method carried out by LICI sometime in 2010. Irrespective

of the same, the Company has settled and paid gratuity to large number of retired and/or resigned workers pending re-imbursement from

L.I.C. of India amounting Rs. 63,93,430 /-.

(iii) As regards Provident Fund, a Defined Contribution Plan, the guidance on implementing AS - 15 "Employees Benefits" issued by the

Accounting Standards Board (ASB) states benefit involving employer established provident fund, which require interest shortfall to be re-

compensated are to be considered as Defined Benefits Plan. Pending issuance of the guidance note by the Actuarial Society of India,

provldent fund liabilities cannot be reliably measured on an actuarial basis. Accordingly, the company is unable to exhibit the related

information. However, P.F. Trust of the Company has already made payments of all the P.F. dues and has applied for dissolution of the

said Trust before P.F. authority.

NOTE - 33). Gratuity & Leave Encashment:

The company paid an annual premium Rs. 63,151/- for the F.Y.2021-2022 &. (P.Y. 94,358/-) during the year under Group Gratuity

Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

(a) Result of Valuation

(b) Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss A/C

Particulars As on 31't March,2022 As on 31't March,202l

PV of Past Service Benefit 8,41,956.00 7,34,541.00

Current Service Cost 82,245.00 79,430.00

Total Service Gratuity 22,88,086.00 22,62,702.00

Accrued Gratuity 9,23,951.00 8,17,506.00

LCSA 13,64,135.00 14,45,196.00

LC Premium 5,248.00 5,227.00

GST 945.00 941.00

Particulars As on 31't March,2022 As on 31't March,202l

Fund Value as on Renewal 8,67,243.00 7,25,781.00

Additional C ontribution Nir 8,760.00

Current Service Cost 56,958.00 79,430.00

Total Amount Paid 63,151.00 94,358.00
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NOTE- 34). Deferred Tax
In view of the accounting standard 22 ' Accounting for Taxes on Income ' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India the
matter has been examined and Deferred Tax Liability/Asset has been recognized, considering prudence Rs.1,14,83,6341-has been taken as
Deferred Tax Liabilities as at 31't March, 2022 andto give effect to the same has been created during the year.

NOTE -3s).
Disclosure in resPect of PrinciPal and Interest pertaining to the o'Micro, Small and medium Enterprises Development A.t, 2006,.

There are no material dues owned by the company to "Micro, Small and medium Enterprises which are outstanding during the year and at
31't March,2022. This information as required under the "Micro, Small and medium Enterprises developmJnt act-2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified as at the end of the year.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year:

principal 3lloY2o22 3uo3/2021

Interest Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the MSME Act ,2006 along with the amount of the prepayment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed date during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Making payment (which would have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified rrrder MSMED Act,2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes of disallowan"" ur-u deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act,
2006.

NOTE -36). Contingent liabilities & Capital Commitments as on 3l'tMarch,2022. :

(u) Appeals filed with Commissioner (A)II Central Excise, Kolkata for a demand of Rs.81,3 5,05U-. provision has not been made for the
demand.

tr'rontier Warehousing Ltd.

Name of
Statute

Nature Of
Dues

Period to
which amount

relates

Amount Involved Amount Unpaid Forum under which
Appeal is Filed

The Finance
Act, t994

Service Tax April,2010 to
March,2013

8 1,35,05 1/ 76,21,6721- Commissioner (A)II
Central Excise, Kolkata

Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

Name of Statute Nature Of
Dues

Period to which
amount relates

Amount
Involved

tr'orum under which Appeal is Filed

The Income Tax Act
t96L

Income Tax A.Y.2004-0s 74,18,122/- CIT (A) and Jurisdiction Officer

The Income Tax Act
t96I

Income Tax A.Y.2005-06 57,61,023/- Applied under VSVS Scheme,2020, for
settlement & paid Rs. 1280737/-. Form IV

awaited.
The Income Tax Act

t96t
Income Tax 4.Y.2006-07 8,12,157/- CIT (A) and Jurisdiction Officer

The Income Tax Act
196r

Income Tax A.Y. 2010-11 3,35,970/- -Do-
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Bengal Waterproof Ltd.
i) The Assistant Labour Commissioner & Competent Authority under the payment of Gratuity Act 1972 has passed an Ex-parte order

against the Company for payment of Rs23,54,2091- as Gratuity to 12 ex-employees of the Company. The Company couldn't defend the
proceedings primarily because of lack of funds to engage legal counsels. Also, all service files were under the custody of 1 retired
employee at the relevant time when the proceedings were initiated.

ii) There are various Money suits pending against the company which are yet to be adjudicated. As and when the Liabilities arises against
these cases if any, they will be accounted for on cash basis.

(b) Capital and Other Commitments

Capital Commitments As on 3ltMarch,2022 As on 31st Marchr2021

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account & not provided for

Rs. 82,9,95,662 Rs. 11,89,97,339

NOTE- 37) Expenses In Foreign Currency

(a) Travelling Expenses
F.Y.2021-2022
12,9930U-

F.Y.2020-2021
Nir

NOTE 38) Merger

The Company had filed application before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench for amalgamation of Bengal
Waterproof Ltd (Transferor Company) with Frontier Warehousing Pvt Ltd (Transferee Company) with appointed date : lst day of January ,
2018. The Scheme of Amalgamation approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal. (NCLT) on dated 09.12.2019. The Company
filed Form INC-28 on 0610112020, which has been approved hence the process of Amalgamation has been completed. The following
Assets &Liabilities of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. has been merged itself.

Amount in Rs.

I. EQUITY AI\D LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Sumlus

(c) Capital Redemption Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

General Reserve

Capital Reserve

Share Premium

Surplus

Total Share Holders Fund

Non-current liabilities

(a) Other Long-term Liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Trade Payables

(b) Other current Liabilities

As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

5,51,56,270.00

1,50,000.00

2,91,51,482.00

4,56,93,645.00

30,99,96,237.00

27,85,32,975.00

(52,27,88,139.00)

5,51,56,270.00

1,50,000.00

2,91,51,492.00

4,56,93,645.00

30,98,96,237.00

27,85,32,975.00

(5r,73,17,342.00)

19,57,92,470.00

34,886.00

10,10,160.00

20,12,63,267.00

41,70,879.00

33,04,252.00

1,61,23,720.00 1,91,31,726.00
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II. ASSETS

Non-current Assets

(a) Fixed assets

i. Tangible Assets

(b) Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Current Assets

(a) Trade Receivable

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Short-term Loans and Advances

(d) Other Current Assets

19,94,29,188.00

58,09,326.00

35,957.00

76,86,765.00

Total 21,29,61,236.00

Statement of Profit and Loss

Shares Issued
Total shares of the Merger company
Less : Cross Holding Shares cancelled

Equity Shares left to be issued of Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

Shares issued inlieu of above in the ratio (l:2.125) 8,09,7931- equity shares

Excess of Assets on Liabilities arising amount of Merger in Bengal Waterproof Ltd.
Waterproof Ltd. as follows.

Bengal Waterproof- Share Issued Capital
Less: Share issued as above
Less: Share Issued to Frontier Warehousing Pvt. Ltd.

Excess Asset over Liabilities

Adjusted with Share Premium /Capital Reserve of

has been adjusted with Capital

go,g7,g3o

35,45,35,2r3

30,74,76,873

Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

NOTE- 39) Revaluation of Assets of Merser Company Bengal Waterproof Ltd
The Company has revalued the Land of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. on the basis of Report of CBRE South Asia Pvt. Ltd. dated 11.03.2019 as

on 31.01.2019 to Rs. 88,10,00,000 (Rupees eighty-eight crore ten lacs only). According the revaluation reserve of Rs. 681570812 has been
created.

NOTE- 40).
The following Current Bank accounts assets of Frontier Warehousing Pvt. Ltd. are maintained in
the name of Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

Sl no Bank Name Account No Address
1 Lakshmi Vilas Bank 02043600000009s2 3, Red Cross Place, Kolkata-700001

Particulars As at 31't March 2020 As at 31't March 2019

Net Income 33.99.308 .00 1.74.000 .00

Total Expenses (including interest and Depreciation)

20.69.055 .00 53,83,727 .00

Profit /(Loss )before Tax 13.30.253 .00 -52,09,727 .00
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NOTE- 41).
i) The interest payments made by the Company for Warehouse, S M Bose Road - Phase II has been considered under the head 'Capital

Work-in-Progress'under Fixed Assets. Interest amounting to Rs. 6,63,67,697l- for the year (P.Y. 8,19,70,225l-) has been passed

through Capital Work in Progress.

NOTE- 42). COVrp-lg
Significant Accounting Policies - Use of estimates and judgments - Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health. The Company
has considered possible effects that may result from pandemic relating to COVID-I9 on the carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment, investments, inventories, receivables and other current assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the economic conditions due to pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used

internal and external sources of information. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on
current estimates expect the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial
statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

NOTE 43). Allotment shares of Bengal Water Proof Ltd.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the

Company has allotted equity Shares to shareholders of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. as per approval of scheme of merger for amalgamation of
IWs. Bengal Waterproof Limited (Transferor Company) with IWs. Frontier Warehousing Limited (Transferee Company), by National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata Bench vide its order no. C.P. (CAA) No.151/KBl20l9 conrrected with C.A (CAA)
No.296lI(B/2018 dated l8l1tl20l9. The Board of the Directors of the Company accordingly allotted 8,09,793 equity shares of Rs. l0/-
each as a fully pad-up aggregating to Rs.80,97,9301- (Rupees Eighty Lacs Ninety Seven Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty only) to the
shareholders of Transferor Company during the year.

NOTE-44
The Company has been converted from "Private Limited Company" to "Limited Company" during the year on2d September, 2021, and
accordingly provisions of the Limited company has been applied and reported on to.the Company during the year under review.

NOTE- 45
The Company does not have any segmental reporting to report for the year under review.

NOTE 46).
Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year classificationl disclosures.

The accompanying Notes I - 46 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Audit report of even date

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FoT DEEPAK AGARV/AL AS SOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0322153E

DEEPAKAGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:220555 8OAJOLQD3 1 23

Place: Kolkata
Date:25.05.2022

GautamAgarwalla
DIN: 00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

AmitAgarwalla
DIN:00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

1564, Lenin Sarani,
F-84, Kamalulaya Centre, Kolkata - 700 013

Ph. No. 8335957541
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as "the Group") its associates and jointly controlled entities, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as

at 31st March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss & statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a sunmary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Holding Company and
its group as at 31't March 2022, its profit and Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 andthe Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1. The Company has been convertedfrom "Private Limited Company" to "Limited Company" during theyear on 2nd

September, 2021, and accordingly provisions of the Limited company has been applied and reported on to the Company
during the year under review.

2.We draw attention to Note- 42 to the accompanying Standalone audited Financial Statements, with regard to the
management's evaluation of uncertainty due to the outbreak of COVID-|9 and its impact on thefuture pedormance and
operations of the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

comprises the information included in the Report of the Directors and Management Discussion & Analysis, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performances and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Holding
Company, the group and its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or elror, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, the group
and its associates are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the conso.lidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or elror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gtarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or elror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

or elror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

disclosures made by the management.

audit evidence obtained, whether amateial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that amaterial uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw affention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modiff our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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consolidated financial statement. This financial statement have been audited by other auditor whose report have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the associates and our report in terms of sub section (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements also include Minority Interest of its Subsidiary company viz. Teasel Realty Pvt.
Ltd. of Rs. (10,57,995) for the year ended 31st Marchr2022, as considered in the consolidated financial statements
whose financial statements have not been audited by us. This financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these the subsidiary and associates, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid the subsidiary & associates, is
based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below,
is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors and the financial statements I financialinformation certified by the Management.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit regarding the financial information of the entities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial Statements, which
have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identifu during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters thaet may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government in terms
of Section 143(l l) of the Act, we are required to give in Annexure "B" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3

and4 of the Order
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e ) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 I st March , 2O2l taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 l st March , 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
(e) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
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operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule l l of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact its financial position, refer

to note no-36.

b. The Company has made provision (nil for the period), as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

c. There are no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

for the year under review.

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0322I,538

DEEPAK AGARWAL

(Proprietor)

Membership No.055580

UDIN: 22055580ALIOOU5529

Place: Kolkata

Date: 2510512022
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Annexure 'A'referred to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the ConsolidatedTinancial Statements
of FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED.

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of the sub-section 3 of sectionl43 Companies Actr 2013
(o'the act")

we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FRONTIER wAREHousING LIMITED
(the "Company") as at 31't March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
company for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The company's management is responsible for establishing andmaintaining internal financial controls based onthe internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the guidance notes on audit of internal financial control over financial reporting issued by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of India (ICAD. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note and the standards on auditing , issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2OI3,to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial control , both applicable to an audit of internal financial control and both issued by ICAI. Those standards and
the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidences about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk- The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or elror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding to reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external pu{poses in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that ;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of compaly are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting , including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31't March, 2022,

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the guidance note.

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 03221538

DEEPAK AGARWAL

(Proprietor)

Membership No. 055580

UDIN: 22055580ALIOOU5529

Place: Kolkata

Date: 2510512022
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AT]DITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to
the Members of Frontier Warehousing Limited as at 31't March 2022)

l. a)(i) The company is maintaining proper records showing fulI particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(ii) The company is maintaining proper records showing fuIl particulars of intangible assets; However the
company does not have any intangible assets .

b) The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management on reasonable period and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the registered sale
/deed transfer deed/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds comprising all the immovable properties
of land and acquired buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date except
following:

Description of
Property

Gross Carrying
Value

Held in name of Whether
Promoter,
Director or
their
Relative or
Employee

Period held
indicate range,
where
Appropriate

Reason for
being held
name

Company

not
tn
of

Land 68,1 5,70,8I2/-
(revalued)

Bengal Waterproof
Ltd.(Bengal

Waterproof Ltd. has

been merged with the

Company on the basis

of order passed by
Hon'ble NCLT
Kolkata on

09/r2/2019)

N.A. According to the

management, the

Company has

taken steps to
Mutate the Land
is its name.

However the

same is pending

with appropriate
authorities.

Land at Subhash

Pally
Durgapur Road,

Mouza Mrigola,
JL-102, Dist
Hooghly,
PIN- 7T2311

76,150,000/- Super Forgings &
Steels Ltd

N.A The Company

Does not intend
to register the

land in
company's name,

the Company

directly selling
the land as

confirming party

The Company

Does not intend
to register the

land tn

company's name,

the Company

directly selling
the land as

confirming party

Land at Dankuni
Dankuni Road
Mouza-Gobra,
Dist-Hooghly
Pin-7123 I0

2,40,00,000/- Maple Logistics N.A' According to the

Management, the

Company r
taking steps to

register the land
in the Company's

Name

According to the

Management, the

Company ls

taking steps to

register the land
in the Company's

Name
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(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or

both during the year and, Hence this clause not applicable to the Company.

(e ) Till date , there is no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, if so, whether the company has

appropriately disclosed the details in its consolidated financial statements. Hence this clause not applicable to the Company.

2.(a)The company does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the

Company.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits during the year. However, the company has been

sanctioned Term Loans during the year and as per the management, all compliances relating to limits are being complied

with.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and limited liability partnership or

other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii),
(iii)(a), (iiD@) and (iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company.

a) The company has invested Rs. 2,50,00,000/-/-( P.Y. Nil) in a body corporate ( subsidiary ) covered in the register

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Also the Company granted capital advance Rs. 23,54,45,000/- (P.Y.Rs. 3,56,53,000/- ) to a Holding Company

Rasha Ind. Pvt Ltd which covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the act. However the capital

advance is not the nature of Loan & Advance hence this clause is not applicable.

Clause (b) , (c) , ( d) ,('e) and d are not applicable to the company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the

provisions of section 1 85 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public witl.rin the meaning of sections 73, 74,75 and76 of the

act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

6.The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of
the services rendered by the Company

7.(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident

fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been

generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the

Company did not have any dues on account of employee's state insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed statutory amount payable in respect

of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of custom, service tax, cess and other material statutory

dues were in arrears as at 31't March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable as

follows.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not deposited the following disputed

amount payable in respect of service tax and Income Tax of merged entity:

b)

c)
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Name of
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Period to
which amount
relates

Amount
Involved

Amount
Unpaid

Forum under
which Appeal is

FiIed
The Finance

Act,1994
Service Tax April, 2010 to

March,2013
81,35,051/ 76,21,6721- Commissioner

(A)II Central

Excise, Kolkata

Frontier Warehousinq Limited

Bensal Waterproof Ltd.( Mersed Entitv)

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Period to which
amount relates

Amount
Involved

Forum under which Appeal is
Filed

The Income Tax Act
t96t

Income Tax A.Y.2004-05 74,18,1221- CIT Appeal and Jurisdiction
Officer

The Income Tax Act
t96t

Income Tax A.Y.2005-06 57,61,0231- Applied under VSVS
Schemer2020, for settlement &
paid Rs. 12807371-. Form IV
awaited.

The Income Tax Act
196r

Income Tax 4.Y.2006-07 8,12,1571- CIT Appeal and Jurisdiction
Officer

The Income Tax Act
t96t

Income Tax A.Y. 2010-11 3,35,9701- -Do-

(c ) According to the information and explanation given to us in respect of statutory and other dues of Bengal
Waterproof Ltd. .

The Assistant Labor Commissioner & Competent Authority under the payment of Gratuity Actl972 has passed an Ex-
parte order against the Company for payment of Rs. 23,54,2091- as Gratuity to 12 ex- employees of the Company. The
Company couldn't defend the proceedings primarily because of lack of funds to engage legal counsels. Also, all service
files were under the custody of I retired employee at the relevant time when the proceedings were initiated.

S.Whether any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196l (43 of 1961), if so, whether the previously unrecorded income
has been properly recorded in the books of account during the year. This clause is not applicable to the company.

9. a) The Company has taken term loans from bank and financial institutions during the year and the company has been
generally regular in the payment of the principal and interest as stipulated by these banks. The company has not any
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The company has not defaulted on repayment of any loan taken by the bank or institution during the year

c) The loans were applied for the purposes for which it was taken.

d) No loans were raised on short term basis.

e) The company has not taken any such loan to fund the obligations of its associated parties.

f) The company has not raised loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

10.(a) The Company has not raised money by the way of initial public offer of further public offer (including debt
instrument).

*--:*"^-
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b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares, convertible debentures during
the year under review.

11. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b) No ADT - 4 has been filed by the auditors during the year under review.

c) No whistle - blower complaints has been received by the company during the year under review.

12.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , the Company is not a nidhi Company,
Accordingly,paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

l3.According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards vide note no-30 to the Consolidated financial statements.

A.(a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
b) Based on the observation given on the report no major observations requiring cofitment has been given by the Internal
Auditor.
l5.According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him,
Accordingly,paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

l6.In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934
and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

17. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial yatr,
18 There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditor during the year under review.
19.On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company
is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date;

20(a) Sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act is not applicable to the company during the year under review.
(b) This clause is not applicable to the company during the year under review.
21.No adverse remarks have been found in the CARO report of the Company included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year under review.

For DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0322153f.

DEEPAK AGARWAL

(Proprietor)

Membership No.055580

UDIN: 22055580ALIOOU5529

Place: Kolkata

Date:2510512022
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A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders'funds

(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

[c J Money received against share warrants
(d ) Minority Interest

2 Non-currentLiabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities
(c) Other Long-term Liabilities
[d) Long-term Provisions

3 Current Liabilities
[a) Short-Term Borrowings
[b) Trade Payables

(i) Total Outstanding dues MSME
(iiJ Total Outstanding dues other than MSME

(c) Other Current Liabilities
[d) Short-term Provisions

TOTAL
B ASSETS

1- Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

(i) Property Plant & Equipment
[iiJ Intangible Assets

[iiiJ Capital Work-in-progress
(b) Non-current Investments
(c) Long-term Loans and Advances
[d) Other Non-current Assets
(e) Deferred Tax Assets [Net)

2 CurrentAssets '
[a) Current Investments

tbl Inventories
(c) Trade Receivables

[d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(e) Short-term Loans and Advances
[fJ Other Current Assets

19,32,44,430
l,oo,06,07,26l

2,39,42,006
1,2O,77,93,697

2,25,49,60,731
1,69,15,000

46,O4,11,277

1,15,1O,42,621

2,O5,Og,gg,26g
53,31,366

29,85,40,389

2,35,47,71,023

26,72,49,993

2,go,3g,g7g
3,37,92,396
1,7O,97,6'J1

34,61,68,949

4,19,56,99,019 3,95,19,s2,592

L8,32,44,43O
96,77,99,191

6

7
7
I
I

2,73,21.,97,OO8

L6,24,37,679

3,69,06,036
54,11,449

2,46,OO,77O
2,64,52,391

25,57,O9,3L4

10

10

1L

3,16,93,O4,546

30,64,69,379

gt,gz,gz,o_oo

2,O1,5,-,16,295

92,54,29,653

5O,SZ,g+,)SO

TOTAL
SignificantAccounting policies and notes L
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our Report of even date

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL AS SOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0322153E

DEEPAKAGARV/AL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:2205 55 80ALIOOU5529
Place: Kolkata
Date:25.05.2022

40,O6,Lg,Og4
4,lg,56,gg,otg

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

t2

13
14
15
t6

GautamAgarwalla
DIN:00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DrN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

3,79,5O,70,925

t,og,6g,)4+
2O,O2,L7,156
11,L5,27,460
7,79,04,734

3,50,63,30,198

ga,zg,6zs
3,2g,5g,gLg

23,O9,25,702
7,3O,44,099

34,56,52,394
3,95,19,92,592

AmitAgarwalla
DN:00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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Figures as at the end
of the previous

reporting period

Figures as at the end of
current reporting

period

A
1

2
3

4

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from Operations (gross)
Other Income
Total Income (l+2)

Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-
progress and stock-in-trade

[a) Employee Benefits Expense
(bJ Finance Costs

[c) Depreciation and Amortisation expense
(d) Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and
extraordinary items and tax (3 - 4)

Exceptional items

Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items
and tax [5 + 6)
Extraordinary items

Profit / (Loss) before tax (7 + 8)
Tax Expense:

(1J Current Tax

17
1B

26,29,L3,3O5
5,64,3O,666

31,93,43,971

19,72,O5,245
3,O2,72,392

22,74,77,637

L9
20
2L
22

97,46,698
15,80,07,397
4,78,83,47O
s,7,1,L6,997

83,72,937
12,91,0L,8L6
3,75,68,683
2,L8,8L,O98

26,67,54,562

5,25,89,47.O

t9,69,24,534

3,05,53,103

6

7 5,25,99,4LO 3,05,53,103

I
I
10

lL

L2

13

[2) Deferred Tax Liability/ ( Asset) Reversed
(3) Tax in Respect of earlier year

Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing
operations
Minority Interest
Profit for the year

Earnings per equity share- Basic and Diluted Face Value
10/- each.

s,25,89,41O

(93,54,7OO)
(7-,14,B3,634)

3,05,53,103

(52,20,000)
(35,34,326)
[15,59,189)

3,L7,51,076

-7.0,57,995

2,O2,39,588

3,28,09,O7O.52 2,O2,39,588

L.73 1.10

SignificantAccounting policies and notes L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL AS S OCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 03221538

DEEPAKAGARV/AL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:2205 55SOALIOOU5529

Place: Kolkata
Date:25.05.2022

Gautam Agarwalla
DIN:00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 0050n57
Non-Executive Director

AmitAgarwalla
DIN:00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary

73 lF*ge

a

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U70 1 09WB 1 990PLC04843 I
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 37stMarch,2022



Particulars For the year ended
31March,2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax
Adiustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and equipment
Loss/ fProfit) on MF
Interest Income
Finance Cost

Operating profit / (lossJ before working capital changes
Adiustments for

Trade receivables
Short Term Loans and Advances
Long Term loans and advances
Other Current assets
Other Long Term Liabilities
Differed Tax Assets/liabilities
Short term Borrowings
Other Current Liabilities
Trade payables
Short Term Provisions

I 
Cash generated from operations

I 

Income tax refund/(payment)

lCash Flow Before Extraordinary Items
lLess : Extraordinary items
I

lNet cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)
I

lB. 
Cash flow from investing activities

lPurchase of Property, Plant and equipment

lProceeds from Sale of Property, plant and equipment
lSale of Investments

Itayment for acquiring eq. Shares

lAddition in Capital Work in Progress

I

lNet 
Cash Flow From InvestingActivities (B)

lC. 
Cashflow from financing activities

rProceeds from Issue of Share Capital
Interest Paid
Interest Received
Repayment of Long term Borrowing
Net Cash flow From FinanacingActivities ( C)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash Equivalent (A+B+c)

Add : Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Closing Cash and Cash equivalent

Rs. P.

5,2S,gg,4lo

4,79,8.3,47O
(4,59,O9,7_65)

(1,o3,27,49O)
15,BO,O7,3g7

20,22,44,O21

(2,.,45,O71)
11,92,98,242
24,64,97,25O

(48,60,634)
16,18,7O,Bgg
I,L4,83,634

(1o,48,12,215)
(91,9L,626)

L,4L,7g,So7
93,54,7OO

64,39,17,697
(2,09,38,334)

62,3O,79,363

62,30,79.363

(1,57,96,39,7OO)
1,30,85,13,565

(2,50,00,000)
(26,7O,76,547)

(56,22,O2,6921

5,00,00,000
(15,90,07,397)

L,O3,27,49O
20,4O,61,463

10,63,91,556

16,72,59,237

3,29,59,919
2O,O2,t7,156

Amount in Rs.
For the year ended

31March,2O2l
Rs. P.

3,05,53,103

3,75,69,683
(76,25,109)
(22,42,OO1)

(2,O3,96,459)
12,91,O1,,816

16,69,7O,O34

(21,72,563)
11,82,25,OO4

(15,O4,99,711)
66,49,429

L4,33,82,062
35,34,326

lo,16,32,o4g
3,57,82,297

19,35,793
(79,44,183)

41,74,95,527
(1,03,13,515)

40,7l,B2,Ol2

40,71,92,O12

(1,05,96,544)
3,10,19,300
2,O1,42,OO1

(39,99,1O,2O3)

(35,93,35,4461

(l2,g1,,o1,BL6)
2,O3,96,459
6,t4,Og,7Og

(4,73,06,6501

5,39,916

3,24,19,oo4
3,29,59,919

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing private Limited)

CIN: U70 I 09W81 990pLC04843 1
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Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31 March. 2022 ( contd..)

Components of cash and cash equivalents
For the year ended

31March,2022

Cash in Hand
Balance with Banks in current accounts
Deposits with banks

Total Cash and Cash equivalent

Rs. P.
4,67,LzB

16,68,43,046
3,29,06,982

2O,O2,!7,156

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow
Statement prescribed under the Act.

Previous Years' figures have been regrouped f years' classification, rearranged, wherever necessary to confirm to current year
Classification.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date .

In terms of our reports attached

FoT DEEPAK AGARWAL AS SOCIAIES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 03221538

DEEPAKAGARWAL
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 055580
UDIN:22055580ALIOOU5529

Place: Kolkata
Date:25.05.2022

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

GautamAgarwalla
DIN:00413204
Managing Director

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157
Non-Executive Director

AmitAgarwalla
DIN:00413345
Director- CFO

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary

For the year ended
31March,2O2l

Rs. P.

L7,31,477
65,917

3,11,61,525

3,29,59,919

T5 lPage
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1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(a) Corporate Information
(i) Frontier Warehousing Limited (formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited) CIN:

U70109WB1990PTC048431is a public Limited Company incorporated in India with its registered office at East India House,

208, Abdul Hamid Street. 3'd Floor, Suite 3F. Kolkata - 700069.

(ii) The equity shares of the Company are not listed in any stock exchanges in India or abroad.

(iii) Bengal Water Proof Ltd. having CIN -U17297WB1940PLC010328 and PAN AABCB2876R has been merged with the

company effect from 01/0112018.

(iv) The Company has been converted into Public Limited Company during the year under review.

(v) The Company is principally engaged in the business of Development of Land &Warehousing.

(b) Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian

GAAP), including the Accounting Standards under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.The financial

statements are prepared on accruals basis under the historical cost Convention and are presented in Indian rupees.

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investments in associates are accounted

for using the equity method of accounting as laid down under Accounting Standard (AS) 23, 'Accounting for Investment in
Associate in Consolidated financial statements. The investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date. The

Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

The list of Subsidiary & Associate companies which are included in the consolidation and the Group's holdings therein are as

under:

NAME OF THE
COMPANY

COUNTRY OF

INCORPORATION
PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP FINANCIAL

YEAR ENDS
ON

AS AT 31ST

MARCH ,2022

AS AT 3I ST

MARCH ,2027
TEASEL REALTY
PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN

INDIA s0% N.A 31ST MARCH,
2022.

(c) Critical accounting estimates
(D Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a material portion of Company's asset base. The periodic charge of depreciation is
derived after estimating useful life of an asset and expected residual value at the end of its useful life. The useful lives and

residual values of assets are estimated by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including
at each financial year end. The lives are based on various external and internal factors including historical experience, relative
efficiency and operating costs and charge in technology.

(ii) Income Taxes

The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes

including amounts to be recovered or paid for uncertain tax positions. Management judgment is required to determine the
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amount of deferred tax assets / liabilities that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable

profits.
(iii) Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.

Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantiff reliably are treated as

contingeqt liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in notes but are not recognized.

( d) Taxes

Income tax expenses comprise current income tax and deferred income tax. Income tax expenses is recognized in the Statement

of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other

comprehensive income or other equity as the case may be.

Current income tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year determined in accordance with the applicable

tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 196I.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial

Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized foe

all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the

temporary difference arises from the initial recognition ( other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduces to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax asset are re-assessed at each reporting date are recognizedto the extent that it has become probable

that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized

or the liability is settled. Based on tax rates ( and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off tax assets against tax

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

( e) Property, Plant and equipment and Depreciation :

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of propsrty, plant and equipment, are measured at cost (which includes capitalizedborrowing costs,If any) less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment

includes its purchase price, duties taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling, removing and

restoring the site on which it is located. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises

the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to brining the item to its intended working
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condition and estimated cost of dismantling, removing and restoring the site on which it is located,
wherever applicable. If significant parts of an item of property,plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is recognized in profit and loss.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure willflow to the company.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of property, plant and equipment less that their estimated residual value using
straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated of assets estimated by the company based on an internal
technical evaluation performed by the Company and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Assets
acquired under finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
rbasonably certain that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Depreciation for assets
purchased/ sold during the period is proportionately charged.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a itraight-line-basis, from the month of addition,
usingthe estimated useful lives based on single shift, as specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,
except in respect of the assets:

Asset Description

Office buildings

Warehouse Building

Electric Installation

Office Equipment's

Motor Vehicles

Computers

Pant & Machinery

Capital work-in-Progress
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, platt and equipment under installation/ under Development and
administrative expenses incurred for the purposes of construction has been appropriated to capital Work in progress
as at the balance sheet date.

Revenue Recognition:
The Company recognizes the revenue on an accrual basis. The company recognizes revenue on Licensing of the
premises of Warehouse based on the agreemenV arrangement with the concerned customers By identiffing the
contract(s) with a customer Identifying the performance obligation of the conkact Determine the Transaction price
Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation and is net of discounts and applicable taxes i.e.,
GST ,service Tax, etc when the Warehouse is licensed to the customer. Other operating income comprises income
from activities incidental to the operations of the company and is recognized as and when the right to receive the

Useful life under schedule II

60 years

60 years

l0 years

10 years

8 years

3 years

10 years
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income is established Profit/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets are stated with reference to their Written down Value
determined on the basis of their historical cost. Interest and other Income is accounted for on accrual basis.

(g) FunctionalCurrency
The Functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are represented in Indian rupees (
rounded off).

Earnings Per Share :

The basic earnings per Share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attibutable to the
equity shareholders by the weighted average nurnber of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders are the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(i)Provisions & Contingent Liability :

General
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable an
outflow of resources will be required to seffle the obligation; in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Obligations and Contingent Liabilities

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also
disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occrurence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Borrowings Cost:

Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to the acquisition and construction of the qualif,ring assets are added to the cost up to the
date when such asset are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which
these are incurred.

Gratuity& Leave Encashment:
Contribution to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund Etc are recognized as expenses in the period in
which the employee renders the service.

The Company has a defined gratuity payment plan with LIC of India. Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and
Leave Encashment are considered as defined benefit obligations and is provided for on the basis of third party acfitarial
valuation, as at the date of Balance Sheet.

(n)Investments:

They are valued at cost. Diminution in the value of investments, if any are not accounted for if they are temporary in nature.

(o)Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss.
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(p)Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original

maturity of twelve months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement

of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an

integral part of the Company's cash management.

(q) Earning per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after

deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted

a,verage number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a right

issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidated of shares). For the purpose of calculating diluted

earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(r) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occulrence

or non-occulrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not

recognized because it is not probable thatanoutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but disclose its existence in the financial statements.

(s)Retirement Benefits ( Bengal Waterproof Ltd)

a. Defined Benefit Plan
The company contributes to the qualifying Group Gratuity cum Life Insurance Policy of Life Insurance Corporation of India

(LICD based on the premium Notices as per the actuarial valuation carried out by themselves, which are charged to revenue.

b. Defined Contribution Plans
The Company has Defined Benefit Plans for its employees' retirement benefits comprising of Provident / Other Funds, which
are recognizedby the Income Tax Authorities and administered through its Trustees / appropriate authorities. The Company

contributes to Provident Fund Trust respect of its covered employees. Interest rates payable by the Trust to the beneficiaries

every year is being notified by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between

the return from the investment of the trust and notified interest rate. The Company also contributes to State Plans namely,

Employees' State Insurance (ESD Fund and Employees' Pension Scheme 1995. Contributions paid/payable during the period

I year to Company's Provident Fund, Pension Fund, Employees' State Insurance Corporation are recognized in the Profit &
Loss Account on accrual basis.

Leave encashment is accounted for on actual payment (cash) basis.
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v

As at
31st March 2021PARTICULARS

27,71,OO,OOO

25,oO,OOO

NOTE: O2 - Share Capital
a) Authorised
2,77,50,00O Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

2,50,000 (L1.5o/o Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each)

b) Issued. Subscribed & Fully Paid up
1,83,24,443 Equity Shares of @ Rs L0/- each
(P.Y.7,83,24,443 Eq Shares of Rs.10/- each)

18,32,44,43O

18,32,44,43O

c) Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

# Equity Shares issued to shareholders of Bengal Waterprof Ltd. represents shares issued on merger of the company

d) Right ofshareholders ofEquity Shares ofRs. 1O/- each

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share . Every member of the company holding any

equity share capital shall have right to vote , in respect of such capital,on resolution placed before the company and his voting right on

the poll shall be in proportion to his share of the paid up equity capital of the company.

e) Details of Equity Shares held by shareholders holding more than 50 of the aggregate shares in the company

As per Records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders

regarding beneficial interest , the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares

0 Details of Equitv Shares held by Promoters

1. RASHA IND. PRIVATE LIMITED
2, ALW ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
3. NEHAAGARWALLA
4. AMITAGARWALLA
5. ANUSH AGARWALLA
6. GAUTAM AGARWALLA .

7. PRITI AGARWALLA
B. GAUTAM AGARWALLA [HUF)
9. AMIT AGARWALLA (HUF)
10. AVNI AGARWALLA
11. AKSHARAAGARWALLA
12. AANYAAGARWALLA
Total

L,28,42,500
19,68,750

L,3L,79L
1,03,574

78,232
87,413
27,7LL
52,736
48,601
16,050
L2,045

70.08
10.74

0.72
0.57
0.43
0.44
0.15
0.29
o.27
0.09
0.07
o.o7

0.03 Addition

\2,587

PARTICULARS
F.Y.202t--2022 F.Y.2020-202L

NUMBERS RUPEES NUMBERS RUPEES

Equity shares at the beginning of the year

Add: issued during the year

I to share holder of Bengal Waterproof Ltd') #

Equity shares outstanding at the end ofthe year

L,83,24,4_43

1,8.3,24,443

18,32,44,+3O

18,32,44,430

L,7s,L4,6sO
8,O9,793

1,83,24,443

L7,st,46,5OO
80,97,93O

18,32,44,43O

Name of The Shareholder

As at 31st lllarch,ZoZ2 As at 31st March, 2O2l

No. ofShares held %o of holding in
the class

No. ofShares held
o/o of holding in the

class

RASHA IND. PVT LTD 1,28,42,500 7O.O8o/o 1,28,42,5OO 7O.O8o/o

RAIHANSH MERCHANTS PRIVATE LTD 24,OO,OOO L3.LOo/o 24,OO,OOO L3.loo/o

A L W ESTATE PVT LTD L9.6A,7SO lO.74o/o 19,6A,750 1O.74o/o

Name of The Promoter
As at 31st I[darch,Z0?Z

7o Change during
the year RemarksNo. of Equity

Shares
%o oftotal shares

81 lFage
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PARTICUUTRS
As at As at

3lstMarch 2022 3lstMarch 2O2l
Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

NOTE : 03 - Reserve &Surplus
A. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

B. Capital Reserves #
Opening Balance
Closing Balance

# Capital reserve mainly Represents amount transferred on amalgamation
with erstwhile Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

C. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Closing Balance

D. RevaluationAccount
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

E. General Reserves
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

F. Total ( B+C+D+E)

Retained Earnings
G. Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statementin profit and Loss
Opening Balance
Add: Addition due to change in shareholding interest
Add: Net Profit for the year

Closing Balance

Toal Closing Balance (A+F+G)

2g,1g,g7,5OO 28,19,87,5OO
2B,1g,B7,5OO 2g,lg,g7,5oo

28,09,52,339 2B,Og,S2,33g
28,09,52,339 28,09,52,339

1,50,000 1,50,000
1,50,O00

71,O7,22,294

1,50,000

71,O7,22,294

71,o7,22,294

4,56,93,645

71,o7,22,294

4,56,93,645
4,56,93,645 4,56,93,645

1,O3,75,L8,279 1,O3,75,19,279

(35,L7,07,597) (37,19,47,L75)

3,2g,Og,O7t 2,O2,3g,Sgg
(31,99,99,s17) (35,17,O7,597)

1,00,06,07,261 96,77,99,191

82 lF*ge
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As at
31st March 2021PARTICULARS

27,75,OO,OOO

25,OO,OOO

NOTE: O2 - Share Capital
a) Authorised
2,77,5O,000 EquityShares of Rs 10/- each

2,50,000 (LL.1o/o Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

1-,83,24,443 Equity Shares of @ Rs lO/- each
(P.Y. L,83,24,443 Eq Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

L8,32,44,43O

c) Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

# Equity Shares issued to shareholders of Bengal Waterprof Ltd. represents shares issued on merger of the company

d) Right of shareholders of Equity Shares of Rs. lO / - each

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share . Every'member of the company holding any

equity share capital shall have right to vote , in respect of such capital,on resolution placed before the company and his voting right on

the poll shall be in proportion to his share of the paid up equity capital of the company.

el Details of Equity Shares held by shareholders holding more than 50 of the aggregate shares in the company

As per Records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders

regarding beneficial interest , the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares

0 Details of Equity Shares held by Promoters

1. RASHA IND. PRIVATE LIMITED
2, ALW ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
3. NEHAAGARWALLA
4. AMIT AGARWALLA
5. ANUSH AGARWALLA
6. GAUTAM AGARWALLA.
7. PRITI AGARWALLA
B. GAUTAM AGARWALLA [HUF)
9. AMrT AGARWALLA (HUF)
10. AVNI AGARWALLA
11.. AKSHARAAGARWALLA
12. AANYAAGARWALLA
Total

L,28,42,500
L9,68,750

1,3L,79L
7,03,574

78,232
8L,4t3
27,111
52,736
48,60L
16,050
72,045

70.08
10.74

0.72
0.57
0.43
0.44
0.15
0.29
0.27
0.09
o.o7
o.o7

0.03 Addition

L2,587

PARTICULARS
F.Y.2021.2022 F.Y.2020-202L

NUMBERS RUPEES NUMBERS RUPEES

Equity shares at the beginning of the year

Add: issued during the year

I to share holder of Bengal Waterproof Ltd') #

Equity shares outstanding at the end ofthe year

L,83,24,4_43

L,83,24,443

18,32,44,4_3O

a832,44,43O

L,75,L4,650
8,O9,793

L,83,24,443

L7,sa,46,5OO
80,97,93O

L8,32,44,43O

Name of The Shareholder

As at 31st Nlarch,Z02? As at 31st March, ZOZL

No. ofShares held %o of holding in
the class

No. ofShares held %io of holding in the
class

RASHA IND. PVT LTD t,28,42,5OO 7O.O8o/o 1,28,42,5OO 7O.O8o/o

RAIHANSH MERCHANTS PRIVATE LTD 24,OO,OOO 13.LOo/o 24.OO.OOO A3.7,Oo/o

A L W ESTATE PVT LTD t9,68,750 LO.74o/o 19,6A,750 LO.74o/o

Name of The Promoter
As at 31st March,2oZ2

%o Change during
the year

RemarksNo. of Equity
Shares

o/o oftotal Shares

81 lFag*
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PARTICULARS
As at As at

3lstMarch 2022 3lstMarch 2021
Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

NOTE : 03 - Reserve & Surplus
A. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

B, Capital Reserves #
Opening Balance
Closing Balance

# Capital reserve mainly Represents amount transferred on amalgamation
with erstwhile Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

C. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Closing Balance

D. RevaluationAccount
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

E. General Reserves
Opening Balance

Closing Balance

F. Total ( B+C+D+E)

Retained Earnings
G. SUrplus / (Deficit) in the Statementin profit and Loss
Opening Balance
Add: Addition due to change in shareholding interest
Add: Net Profit for the year

Closing Balance

ToaI Closing Balance (A+F+G)

2B,l9,B7,5OO 28,lg,g7,5OO
2g,lg,g7,soo 2B,lg,B7,5OO

28,09,52,339 28,09,52,339
28,09,52,339 28,09,52,339

1,50,000 1,50,000
1,50,o00 1,50,000

71,07,22,294 71,07,22,294

71,o7,22,294 71,o7,22,294

4,56,93,645 4,56,93,645
4,56,93,645 4,56,93,645

I,O3,75,L9,279 I,O3,75,19,279

(35,17,07,597)

3,29,09,071

(37,19,47,L_75)

2,O2,39,599
(31,99,99,517) (35,17,O7,597)

1,00,06,07,261 96,77,gg,lg1

S2 lFRSe

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing private Limited)

CIN: U70109W8 I 990PLC04843 I
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PARTICULARS

Amount in Rupees Amount in Ru
3lstMarch 2022 3lstMarch 2O2l

NOTE : O4 - Long Term Borrowings
Secured Loan
(A) ICICI Bank- Term Loan - A/c no-S7OS
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against Property Mortgage Loan against property of EMI
588071/- Repayable in periodic instalments up to a period of L23
months from lanuary'2019 to December'2029
(B) ICIC Bank Loan -Alc no 2808
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against Mortgage loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 56513/-
upto 10.02.22 after onwards @20164L /- in 60 months From
March ZOZL to February'2026

(C) Indusind Bank Limited - Term Loan

Secured against construction of Warehousing complex, Loan will
be due and repayable in bullet instalment at the end of 36 months
date of first disbursement, and further extended by 6 months i.e.,
from October 2022.

(D) Indusind Bank Limited - Term Loan-Ac no- O333
Less: Instalments due within nextt2 months
Secured against Property Mortgage Loan of Flexible, for
construction of warehouse, EMI in every month,Repayable in
periodic instalmentin144 months from lanuary'2018 to
December'2029

(E) Indusind Bank Limited Term Loan-A/c no -1O41
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Assignment of existing as well as future lease rental of the
property , extension of charge on equitable mortgage land &
building.

(F) Indusind Bank Limited Term Loan-A/c no-3712
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months
Business Purpose Loan
Secured against Mortgage Loan of Flexible EMI in every month
,Repayable in periodic instalment in 84 months from |uly '2019 to
lune'2O25

[G) Aditya Birla Finance Ltd. -Alc no 3047
Less: Instalments due within nextL2 months

Secured against Lease Rental Discounting , Repayment EMI's Rs.
3389992/- in23t months FromApril' 2018 to fuly 2037

(H) Aditya Birla Finance Ltd - A/c no-8399
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months

Secured against Lease Rental Discounting , Repayment EMI's Rs.
2547067 /- in228 months From May'2018 to December'2037.

4l,76,05,OgO 33,9fJ,93,6fJ6

3,62,69,167,
(4a,s5,79O)

go,g4,36o
(18,2a362)

57,94,33,243
(2,96,3O,OOO)

6,A8,a2,5OO
(40,35,0OO)

4,99,O4,797,
(81,40,2A7)

33,7O,22,331
(66,00,O00)

24,07,18,535
(43,92,000)

4,OO,3fJ,699
(37,8O,78a)

82,2O,OOO
(1,4s,128)

62,7,4,fJ3,572
(3,45,1O,571)

6,SO,O7,690

5,11,43,9O7
(27,29,822)

33,56,54,151
(45,13,699)

25,19,s4,926
(33,33,416)

83lFage
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PARTICULARS
As at As at

3lstMarch 2022 3lstMarch 2O2l
Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

(I) Aditya Birla Finance Ltd - A/c no 6384
Less: Instalments due within next12 months

Secured against Lease Rental Discounting , Repayment EMI's Rs.

635744/- in 116 months From luly 20t9 to March'2029.

4,54,86,951 4,94,07,IJgO
(42,96,000) (4L,59,697)

$) Axis Bank Loan - A/c no- 6993 21,54,393 32,L9,817
Less: Instalments due within nextL? months (11,62,692) (10,65,424)
Secured against car loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 108761/- in63
months From November'20L8 to fanuary'2024.

(K) Yes Bank Loan - Ac no-6175 - 2,64,694
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months (2,64,694)
Secured against car loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 54086 /- in37
months From August'2018 to August'2021

(L) Kotak Mahindra Bank -A/c no-0015 28,57,03,779 31,62,67 ,483
Less: Instalments due within next L2 months (2,90,45,20fJ) (2,57,53,55L)

Secured against for construction of warehouse property,
Repayment EMI's inl23 months fromApril 20LB to fanuary
'2030.

(M) Tata Capital Finance Services
Working Capital Demand Loan

First and exclusive charge by way of Mortgage on Property
Standing in the name Rasha Ind. Pvt. Ltd.

4,81,62,669 4,85,99,526

(N) Bank of Baroda Loan A/c LO,2O,917
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months (3,38,709)

Secured against car loan , Repayment EMI's Rs. 33366 /- in36
months From February'z0zz to |anuary'2025

(O) Canara Bank Loan A/c 2580 24,00,00,000
Less: Instalments due within next 12 months (48,00,000)

Lease Rental D isc o unting Loan, Mortgage o n P roperty, Repayable
int79 step-up monthly instalments alongwith interest from
30.0 4.2022 to 28.02.2037

2,25,49,60,731 2,O5,OB,gg,268

84 lFag*
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PARTICULARS

As at As at
31stMarc}r?Oz? 3lstMarch?OZL

Amountin Rupees Amountin Rupees

NOTE :5 - Other Long Term Liabilities
From Customers

Security Deposits against Licence Fees #
Security Deposit for Electricity #

Other Deposits

Advance against Sale of Property ##

11,44,23,59O
4,82,58,800

1o,34,886
29,66,94,OO7,

7,41,58,OO2
4,28,47,5OO
7.,4O,34,8,86

16,75,00,000

46,O4,L7,,277 29,85,4O,388

# Deposits from customers are non interest bearing and repayable on termination of agreement, unless otherwise agreed

## The company has entered into agreements with various parties for sale of land/constructed space towards which it has

received advances. remainingunexecuted as at 3L/03/2022

NOTE : 06 - ShortTerm Borrowings
From otherthan Related Partv
From Body Corporates
From Related Party
From a Director
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt

6,35,00,000

5,2O,7OO

9,84,16,978

t8.,65,51-,lZO

4,42,OOO

8,O2,56,773

L6,24,37,678 26,72,49,893

NOTE : 07 - Trade Payables due for payment (Refer note no- 24)
MSME ( Refer note no- 30)

Others
Disputed Dues - MSME ( Refer note no- 30)

Disputed Dues - Others

3,68,06,O36
44,O1,289

10,10,160

z,zo,z8,8_L8

10,10,160

4,22,17,485 2,8O,38,977.7L

NOTE : O8 - Other Current Liabilities
Liabilities for Expenses

Advance from Customer
Statutory Dues
Other Liabilities
Credit Balance with Banks in currentAr/c
Due to Excess Cheques Drawn

Indusind Bank
State Bank of India
FWPL Indusind Bank Escrow A/C

L,\3,+6,759
t7,7O8

L,32,36,3O4

7.,69,77,919

1,59,88,551

5,9O,574
41,O92

7,,84,260

2,46,00,77O 3,37,82,396

NOTE : 09 - ShortTerm Provisions
Provision for Current Tax 2,64,52,381

2,64,52,381
L,7O,97,68L
L,7O,97,681

85 lFagu*
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PARTICUUTRS
As at As at

31stMarch2022 3lstMarch2OZl
Amount in Rupees Amount in Rupees

NOTE : 11 - Lone Term Loans and Advances
Capital Advances

(refer note no- 28)

NOTE : 12 - Current Investments

NOTE : 13 - Trade Receivables (Refer note no- 25)
( Unsecured . unless otherwise stated)
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

NOTE : 14- Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand [As certi[led by the management)

Balance with Banks

With Schedule bank in CurrentA/c

Deposit with Original Maturity of less than 12 Months

(Represents deposits marked as Under lien with Bank towards Guarantees)

NOTE : 15- ShortTerm Loans andAdvances

Loans andAdvances

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless stated otherwise)
To Body Corporates
Other Advances

Unsecured. Considered good
Balance With Govt. Authorities

NOTE : 16- Other CurrentAssets
Deposits
Deposit with Govt. Authorities ( Against Appeal)
Tax Payments

I,09,69,744 8,8,23,673

3L,92,97,OOO 56,57,8,4,250
3t,92,g7,OOO 56,57,8,4,25O

I,O9,68,744 88,23,673

4,67,1,2g

16,68,43,046

3,29,06,98.2

L7,31,477

65,917

3,11,61,525

2O,O2,17,156 3,29,58.,919

5,52,596
4,4O,24,512

6,69,5O,362

8,16,03,339
6,46,36,571

8,45,95,793
11,15,27,460 23,08,25,702

1,34,O5,48,4
5,99,173

2,O,-,66,196
5,99,L73

6,39,00,07 6 5,22,78,7 40
7,79,O4,734 7,3O,44,099

eo ipil;"*_-*
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PARTICUUTRS
As at

3lstMarch2O22
Amount in Rupees

As at
31st March2O2l

Amount in Ru

NOTE : 17- Revenue From Operations
License Fees Received 26,29,L3,3O5 19,72,05,245

26,29,13,3O5 19,72,O5,245

NOTE : 18- Other Income
Interest on Loans

Interest on FD

Interest on I. Tax Refund
Interest received against CESC Security
Capital Gain on sale of Mutual Fund
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Sundry Balance Written Back

57,86,390
19,39,398
15,15,940
10,85,952

4,59,O8,765
1,94,411

1,56,32,897
1g,11,oog
Ls,39,665
13,02,888
22,42,OO1
76,25,1O9

19,824
s,64,30,666 3,O2,72,392

NOTE : 19- Employee Benefits Expenses

Salary, Wages & Allowances

Contribution to ESIC & EPF

Staff Welfare & Compensation

Gratuity Paid

73,49,OO1

2,14,312
20,31,134

1,52,251

68,35,359

1,54,847

11,73,373

2,09,358

97,46,699 83,72,937

NOTE :20- Finance Cost
Interest on Bank
Interest on Unsecured Loan
Interest on Car Finance
Interest on TDS

Interest on P. Tax
Interest on M. Tax
Bank Charges

L3,76,18,871
1,55,35,759

2,51,764
41,90,557

3,150
73,O87

3,44,209

11,77,96,408
85,79,465

3,78,f314
22,47,695

34,385

65,050

1S,BO,O7,3g7 L2,91,01,816

NOTE : 21- Depreciation andAmortisation Cost

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment

I

I

4,78,83,470.00 3,75,68,683

4,78,83,47O 3,75,68,683

91 lFage



PARTICULARS
As at As at

31stMarc}a2O22 3lst March2O2l
Amountin Rupees Amount in Rupees

NOTE :22- Other Exnenses
Auditors Remuneration
- Statutory & Tax Audit Fees

- For CFS

- Internal Audit Fees

Advertisement
Commission & Brokerage
Electricity Charges Reimbursed [net)
Miscellaneous Expenses
Insurance Charges

Directors Sitting Fees

Employer - Employee Scheme Insurance
Key man Insurance
Membership Fees

Motor Car Expenses

Processing Charges

Legal & Professional Fees

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Repairs and Maintenance
- Building
- Maintenance
- Others
Travelling Expenses
( including foreign travel)

3,00,0o0
25,000

1,00,000
3,675

1,44,98,L9O
s7,8.3,694
40,O8,1O2
19,59,347

2,2O,OOO

1,13,58,078
20,15,750
12,53,369
7,36,407
6,7 4,934

23,28,682
L6,21,535

6,12,627
17,75,418

1,57,900
16,84,429

5,1L,16,997

2,00,000

14,s4,s44
l,g2,5gg

lo,o7,37g
13,43,992

1,20,000
Bo,o5,73g
19,97 ,7 40
2,51,709
5,l2,OLO
5,12,4OO
2,32,25O

22,4L,275

14,28,265
16,OL,97L

1,70,050
6,09,186

2,lB,8,-,OgB

NOTE : 23- Work In Progress
Salary, Wages & Allowances

(lncluding Directors RemunerationJ

Material & Construction Expenses

Interest Paid

Other Expenses

Insurance

Rent Rates & Taxes

Land Filling ( Gobra Dankuni Land)

1,65,01,563

19,O9,54,339

5,65,93,611
46,2g,Ogg

13,30,013
26,55,965

3,38,04,900
30,64,69,380

4,95,99,715

65,66,17,149
17,23,60,995

3,42,4O,647
s6,s,.,g34

69,59,213

92,54,29,653
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Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Davment Total

Less than 1

vear
L-2years 2-3

vears
More than 3

years
i.) MSME 3,68,06,036 3,68,06,036
ilI Others 26,93,862 17,O7,427 44,0t,289
iii') Disputed dues -MSME

ivJ Disputed dues - others 10,10,160 10,10,160
Total 3,94,99,898 27,17,587 4,22,17,485

NOTE NO - 24 -Trade Payables ageing schedule Amountin Rupees

NOTE : 26-Relationship with Struck Off Companies

Nature of Transactions with Struck - Off
Company

Investments in Securities
Receivables
Payables
Shares held by Struck off Company

Other outstanding balance ( to be specified)

Balance Relationship with the Struck off Company, if any, to be
Outstanding disclosed

Total

NOTE : 27- Details of Crypto Currency orVirtual Currency

Where the Company has traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency
during the financial year, the following shall be disclosed:-

(a) Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virtual Currency,
(b) Amount of currency held as at the reporting date,

[c) Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in
Crypto Currency / orVirtual Currency.

F.Y.202L-2022

Nil
Nil

Nil

eili, - s;

NOTE NO - 25 -Trade Receivable ageing schedule:

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total
Less than 6

months
6 months to 1

year
l-z

years 2-3 years
More than 3

years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered
sood

t,09,68,744 L,09,68,744

[ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful
[iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered
eood
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered
doubtful

Total r,o9,68,744 LOg,64,744

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U70l 09WB I 990PLC04843 I
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3 I st March,2022



NOTE: 28 Amountin Rupees
The following disclosures shall be made where Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors,

(a) Repayable on demand
(b) Without specifying any terms or period of repaymen!

Capital Advances

Nil

Promoter Company
Directors
KMPs
Related Parties

Capital Advances 23,54,45,000 86.740/o

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

The above increase is due to increase in Trade Receivables, Trade payables on account of Revenue Growth as
compared to previous year.

Type of Borrower Amountof loan or advance in the nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans
and Advances in the nature

of Ioans

AS AT

3!.O3,2022
AS AT

31.03.2021
a) Current Ratio

b) Debt - equity Ratio

c) Debt Service Coverage Rati

d) Return on equity Ratio

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio
fJ Trade Receivables Turnov
Ratio

g) Trade Payables Turnover

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio

i) Net Profit Ratio

Return on capital employed

k) Return on Investment

Current assets

Total Debt

Earnings avl for Debt Service

Net Profit for year

Inventory

Revenue from operations

Net Credit Purchases

Revenue from operations

Net Profit for tle year

Profits before tax and
finance costs
Income Generated From

Current liabilities

Shareholders equity

Debits SeMce
Average shareholders
equity

Turnover

Average trade
receivables
Average trade
payables

Working Capital
(current assets-

current liabilities)

Revenue from
operations

Capital employed (Net
worth+borrowing+
e liabilities)

Investments

2.L6

72.84

t.25

L.73

23.97

1.00

LL,63

0.94

0.11

22.35

0.10

0.04

1,L5.920/o

tBL.430/o

L.8to/o

0.L50/o

0.00%
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NOTE- 3G. Disclosure of Related ParW Transactions:

Parties with whom transactions have been taken place during the year:

fil e;s;- -

Parties Relationship

Rasha lnd. Private limited
Teasel Realty Pvt. ttd.
Gautam Agarwalla

Amit Agarwa!la

Anush Agarwalla

Priti Agarwalla
Rishi Bajoria

Charu Rajgarhia

Milan Bhatia

Dipankar Biswas

Neha Agarwalla

Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Key Management Personnel( KMP)

Key Management Personnel( KMP)

Key Management Personnel(KMP)

Company Secretary

Related to KMP

Related to KMP

Nature of Transactions:
AS AT 31ST MARCHzOzz

Rs.

AS AT31ST MARCH2OZL

Rs.

1. For Services

il Renumeration to Executive Directors
Gautam Agarwalla

Amit Agarwalla

PritiAgarwalla
Anush Agarwalla

ii) For Salarv

Dipankar Biswas

Neha Agarwalla

Milan Bhatia

iii) lnsurance Premium
Gautam Agarwalla

Amit Agarwalla

PritiAgarwalla
Anush Agarwalla

Neha Agarwalla

ivl lndependent Directors Sitting Fees

Rishi Bajoria

Charu Rajgarhia

2. Works Contract OutStanding Amount
Rasha lnd. (P) Limited

i. Works Contract Paid During the Year
Rasha lnd. (P) Limited - S.M. Bose Phase -ll

60,oO,ooo

24,OO,WO

L7rN,@O

12,00,(xx)

60,oO,ooo

2400,000

L6,2O,ON

12,00,000

1,13,46,00O L,L2,2O,W

9,18,000

L7rN,O@

4,76,32O

9,1&000

L3,2O,m
5,79,572

3,-,34,32O 28,L7,572

52,97,228

24,85,L65

L5,74,650

2L,g6,sLO

L9,3O,275

M,57,513
4,N,ilg

15,61648

Lg,77,5LO

15,54,159

L,33,73,828 L,@,O3,479

1,10,000

L10 mo
60,m0
60,OO0

2,2O,OOO L,2O,AOO

3,68,06,036

21,42,18,155

3,43,24,739

28,3L,49,9@

25,LO,24,L9L 3L,74,74,699

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U701 09WB 1 990PLC04843 1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3l St ,Marcht 2022



NOTE- 3G. Disclosure of Related Partv Transactions:

s6LF;t;

Nature of Transactions:
AS AT 31ST MARCH2O22

Rs.

AS AT 31ST MARCHaO2I

Rs.

3. Capital Advance

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited

4. Reimbursement of Expenses

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited

il Balance as at vear ended. Amounts Pavable

Anush Agarwalla

Gautam Agarwalla

Milan Bhatia

Anush Agarwalla

Dipankar Biswas

ii) Transaction made During the Year

Amit Agarwalla ( Paid & Received during the year)

Gautam Agarwalla ( Paid during the year)

Gautam Agarwalla ( Received during the year)

Rasha lnd. (P) Limited ( Paid & Received duringthe year)

23,54,45,O@ 35,55,30,(X)0

23,54,45,W 35,55,30,ofi)

3,24,24,758 3,59,88,213

3,24,24,758 159,8&213

7,95,349

46,000

7,85,49
72,O@

3,92,L49

4,42r0,JO

3,92,L49

67,932

15,88,698 L2,94,23O

24,@,OOO

5,47,55,556

5,47,55,556

11,55,0(X)

2,66,7L,31O

2,7L,13,31O

6,59,65,m0

t,-,tg,LL,LL2 L2,L9,M,62O

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U70 1 09WB I 990PLC048431
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3 I St ,Marcht 2022
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NOTE-31). Earninss Per Share (EPS)

Particulars For the Financial Year
2021--2022

For the Financial Year
2020 --2021

Profit for the yearafter tax 3r28r09r071 2r02r391588

No of Shares No of Shares

Weighted average number of Equity Shares in calculating Basic

and Diluted EPS

183,24,443 183,24,443

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 1.73 1.10

Nominal Value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

NOTE- 32). Retirement Benefits:( in the matter of Bensal Waterproof Ltd - mersed entity)
(i) As per consistent practice, the liability on account of leave encashment has neither been ascertained nor provided for in
these accounts, as the same is accounted for on actual payment basis.

(ii) The Gratuity Schemes, for both the categories of employees namely, Life Assurance cash accumulation Policy offered by
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LICI)is in existence. The estimated unfunded Gratuity liabilities was ascertained on the

last occasion Rs.1,00,44,9281- based on the actuarial valuation under Projected Unit Credit Method carried out by LICI
sometime in 2010. Irrespective of the same, the Company has settled and paid gratuity to large number of retired andlor

resigned workers pending re-imbursement from L.I.C. of India amounting Rs. 63,93,430 l-.

(iii) As regards Provident Fund, a Defined Contribution Plan, the guidance on implementing AS - 15 "Employees Benefits"

issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) states benefit involving employer established provident fund, which require

interest shortfall to be re-compensated are to be considered as Defined Benefits Plan. Pending issuance of the guidance note

by the Actuarial Society of India, provident fund liabilities cannot be reliably measured on an act'larrial basis. Accordingly, the

company is unable to exhibit the related information. However, P.F. Trust of the Company has already made payments of all
the P.F. dues and has applied for dissolution of the said Trust before P.F. authority.

NOTE - 33). Gratuitv & Leave Encashment:

The company paid an annual premium Rs. 63,1511- for the F.Y. 2021-2022&( P.Y. 94,3581-) during the year under Group

Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Result of Valuation

Particulars As on 31't March r 2022 As on 31't March,202l
PV of Past Service Benefit 8,41,956.00 7,34,541.00

Current Service Cost 82,245.00 79,430.00

Total Service Gratuity 22,88,086.00 22,62,702.00

Accrued Gratuity 9,23,951.00 8,17,506.00

LCSA 13,64,L35.00 14045,196.00

LC Premium 5,248.00 5,227.00

GST 945.00 941.00

97 lF,ig*
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Amount recognized in the Statement of Prolit & Loss A/C

Particulars As on 31't March.-2022 As on 31't March r 202l
Fund Value as on Renewal 8,67,243.00 7,25,781.00
Additional Contribution NiI 8,760.00
Current Service Cost 56,958.00 79,430.00

Total Amount Paid 63,151.00 94,359.00

NOTE- 34).Deferred Tax
In view of the accounting standard 22 'Accounting for Taxes on Income ' issued by the Instifute of Chartered Accountant of
India the matter has been examined and Deferred Tax Liability/Asset has been reco gnized , considering prudence
Rs.1,14,83 ,6341- has been taken as Deferred Tax Liabilities as at 3lst March, 2022 and, to give effect to the same has been
created during the year.

Act.2006".

There are no material dues owned by the company to "Micro, Small and medium Enterprises which are outstanding during the
year and at 3 l'March , 2021 . This information as required under the "Micro, Small and medium Enterprises development act
2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified as at the end of the year.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year :

31t03t2022 3U03t2021
Principal

Interest

The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16
Of the MSME Act,2006 along with the amount of the prepayment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed date during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
Making payment (which would have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under MSMED Act,2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payabre even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as

above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purposes
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act,
2006.

Nil Nil

NilNil

NOTE -36).Contineent liabilities & Capital Commitments as on 31.March"2022. :

Appeals filed with Commissioner (A)II Central Excise, Kolkata for a demand of Rs.S1 ,35,0511-. provision has not
been made for the demand.
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Frontier Warehousing Ltd.

Bensal Waterproof Ltd.

Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

The Assistant Labour Commissioner & Competent Authority under the payment of Gratuity ActlgT2has passed an

Ex-parte order against the Company for payment of Rs23,5 4,2091- as Gratuity to 12 ex-employees of the Company.
The Company couldn't defend the proceedings primarily because of lack of funds to engage legal counsels. Also all
service files were under the custody of I retired employee at the relevant time when the proceedings were initiated.

ii) There are various Money suits pending against the company which are yet to be adjudicated. As and when the Liabilities
arises against these cases if any, they will be accounted for on cash basis.

Capital and Other Commitments

Capital Commitments As on 3L't
NI.arch,2022

As on 31't
NI.arch,202l

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed

on capital account & not provided for
Rs.82,9,95,662 Rs.

11,89,97,339

NOTE- 37)Expenses In Foreisn Currencv

F.Y. 2021-2022 F.Y. 2020-2021
Travelling Expenses 12,99,2001- Nil
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Name of
Statute

Nature Of Dues Period to which
amount relates

Forum under which
Appeal is Filed

81,35,05 1/-The Finance

Act,1994
76,21,6721-April, 2010 to

March,2013
Commissioner (A)II
Central Excise, Kolkata

Nature Of
Dues

Period to which
amount relates

Forum under which Appeal is FiledAmount
Involved

The Income Tax
Act 1961

CIT (A) and Jurisdiction Officer74,18,1221-

The Income Tax
Act 1961

57,61,0231- Applied under VSVS Scheme,2020, for
settlement & paid Rs. 1280737/-. Form IV
awaited.

8,12,1571-The Income Tax
Act 1961

CIT (A) and Jurisdiction OfficerIncome Tax

A.Y. 2010-l IThe Income Tax
Act 1961

3,35,9701-

FRONTIER WAREHOUSING LIMITED
(formerly known as Frontier Warehousing Private Limited)

CIN: U70 109WB 1990PLC04843 1
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NOTE 38 )Merqer

The Company had filed application before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench for amalgamation of
Bengal Waterproof Ltd ( Transferor Company ) with Frontier Warehousing Pvt Ltd ( Transferee Company) with appointed
date : lst day of January ,2018. The Scheme of Amalgamation approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal. (NCLT)
on dated 09.12.2019.The Company filed Form INC-28 on 0610112020, which has been approved hence the process of
Amalgamation has been completed. The following Assets &Liabilities of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. has been merged itself.

Amount in Rs.

I.

1

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

(c) Capital Redemption Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

General Reserve

Capital Reserve

Share Premium

Surplus

Total Share Holders Fund

Non-current liabilities

(a) Other Long-term Liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Trade Payables

(b) Other current Liabilities

Total

As on 31.03.2020

5,51,56,270.00

1,50,000.00

2,91,51,482.00

4,56,93,645.00

30,98,96,237.00

27,85,32,975.00

(52,27 ,88,13g.00)

As on 31.03.2019

5,51,56,270.00

1,50,000.00

2,91,51,482.00

4,56,93,645.00

30,98,96,237.00

27,85,32,975.00

(51,73,17 ,342.00)

19,57,92,470.00

34,996.00

10,10,160.00

1,61,23,720.00

20,12,63,267.00

41,70,879.00

33,04,252.00

1,81,31,726.00

21,29,61,236.00 22,68,70,124.00

II. ASSETS

Non-current Assets

(a) Fixed assets

i. Tangible Assets

(b) Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Current Assets

(a) Trade Receivable

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Short-term Loans and Advances

(d) Other Current Assets

Total

19,94,29,188.00

58,09,326.00

19,94,29,188.00

58,09,326.00

14,000.00

1,41,610.00

1,94,70,000.00

20,06,000.00

35,957.00

76,86,765.00

21,29,61,236.00 22,68,70,124.00
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Particulars As at 31't March 2020 As at 31't March 2019

Net Income 33,99,308 .00 1,74,000.00

Total Expenses ( including interest and

Depreciation) 20,69,055 .00 53,83,727 .00

Profit /( Loss )before Tax 13,30,253.00 -52,09,727 .00

Statement of Profit and Loss

Shares Issued

Total shares of the Merger company

Less : Cross Holding Shares cancelled

Equity Shares left to be issued of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. 3,80,842

Shares issued in lieu of above in the ratio (1 : 2.125) 8,09,7931- equity shares

Excess of Assets on Liabilities arising amount of Merger in Bengal Waterproof Ltd. has been adjusted with Capital Reserve
of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. as follows.

Bengal Waterproof- Share Issued Capital
Less: Share issued as above

Less: Share Issued to Frontier Warehousing Pvt. Ltd.

Excess Asset over Liabilities

Adjusted with Share Premium /Capital Reserve of
Bengal Waterproof Ltd.

55,15,627

51,34,785

5;51,56,270

80,97,930

35,45,35,213

30,74,76,873

NOTE- 39) Revaluation of Assets of Merger Company Bengal Waterproof Ltd
The Company has revalued the Land of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. on the basis of Report of CBRE South Asia Pvt. Ltd.

dated 11.03.2019 as on 31.01 .2019 to Rs. 88,10,00,000.( Rupees eighty eight crore ten lacs only). According the revaluation
reserve of Rs. 681570812 has been created.

NOTE- 40).

The followinq Current Bank accounts assets of Fro ntier Warehousin q Pvt. Ltd. are maintained in
the name of Benqal Waterproo f Ltd.

Sl no Bank Name Account No Address
1 Lakshmi Vilas Bank 0204360000000952 3, Red Cross Place, Kolkata-700001

NOTE- 41).

The interest payments made by the Company for Warehouse, S M Bose Road - Phase II has been considered under the
head'Capital Work-in-Progress'under Fixed Assets. Interest amounting to Rs. 6,63,67,6971- for the year (P.Y.
8,19,70,225l-) has been passed through Capital Work in Progress.

NOTE- 42). COVrp-lg

Significant Accounting Policies - Use of estimates and judgments - Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health.
The Company has considered possible effects that may result from pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, investments, inventories, receivables and other current assets. In developing the assumptions
relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions due to pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval
of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. The Company has performed sensitivity
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analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expect the carrying amount of these assets will be

recovered. The impact of COVID-l9 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements.

NOTE 43). Allotment shares of Bengal Water Proof Ltd.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has allotted equity Shares to shareholders of Bengal Waterproof Ltd. as per approval of scheme of
merger for amalgamation of IWs. Bengal Waterproof Limited (Transferor Company) with M/s. Frontier Warehousing Limited
(Transferee Company), by National Company Law Tribunal Q.{CLT) Kolkata Bench vide its order no. C.P. (CAA)
No.l5lll<Bl20l9 connected with C.A (CAA) No.296A(Bl20l8 dated l8llll20l9. The Board of the Directors of the
Company accordingly allotted 8,09,793 equity shares of Rs.10/- each as a fully pad-up aggregating to Rs. 80,97,9301-
(Rupees Eighty Lacs Ninety Seven Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty only) to the shareholders of Transferor Company
during the year.

NOTE.44
The Company has been converted from "Private Limited Company" to "Limited Company" during the year on 2"d

September,202l, and accordingly provisions of the Limited company has been applied and reported on to the Company
during the year under review.

NOTE- 45

The Company does not have any segmental reporting to report for the year under review.

NOTE 46).

Since the Subsidiary has been incorporated on dated 1410712021, there has been no changed in the Previous
year figures.

NOTE 47).

Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year
classifi cation/ disclosures.

The accompanying Notes I - 47 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Audit report of even date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For DEEPAK AGARWAL ASSOCIATES Gautam Agarwalla Amit Agarwalla
Chartered Accountants DIN: 00413204 DIN: 00413345
Firm Registration No. 0322153E Managing Director Director- CFO

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 055580

UDIN:2205 5 s SOALIOOUS 529

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25.05.2022

Rishi Bajoria
DIN- 00501157

Non-Executive Director

Milan Bhatia
Mem. No-34850
Company Secretary
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Truer word$ were never ryoken" Th* history of Bengal

is but a polyphonic ode to leadership. She is the sout

of lndia; her landscape has served as a

multi-dimensional canvas for many a renaissance.

Bengal remains an enduring emblem of progress to

this day. But she would not mind a helping hand.

That is just what we hope to offer to our beloved

Bengal - a helping hand. Frontier Warehousing

aspires to empower the people of Bengal,

by making more r00m for industry employment , ,

and development.
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